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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed in the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid

market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of

which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the

Company’s website at www.gca.com.hk.
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ARER
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

It gives me great pleasure to present my first statement as the chairman and
independent non-executive director of GreaterChina Professional Services
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), and to share with you our first

annual report.

If the journey of a listed company is compared to a life journey, then the
Company is a newborn infant. After years of commitment we have gradually
grown strong enough to set foot on this new stage of our company history.
Market competition has been a motivating force which keeps us marching
forward; and we understand there is no room for complacency if we want
to stay competitive. Thus, we never stop exploring the boundaries of our

capacity, equipping ourselves to proceed to the next stage.

PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the Group achieved turnover of HK$55.6
million, representing an 9.2 % increase over the HK$50.9 million reported
in 2010. Profit attributable to shareholders was HK$25.4 million, versus a
profit of HK$26.7 million in 2010. Basic earnings per share was HK$6.78,
compared to HK$7.13 in 2010.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group was mainly engaged in providing
high level of services in two sectors — asset advisory services and asset

appraisal, and corporate services and consultancy.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Asset Advisory Services and Asset Appraisal

Asset appraisal is the core business of the Group. Among its major
engagements in the year under review, the Group has provided independent
valuation reports to a number of listed companies to meet market, regulatory
and fiduciary requirements for various purposes including initial public
offering, merger and acquisition, financial reporting, compliance and fairness
opinion. The number of contracts during the year reached 301 with a
consideration of HK$52.5 million. Asset appraisal services provide a stable
revenue source to the Group and it also generates leads to the Group's asset

advisory services.

Asset advisory services typically involve identifying potential investments
or investors, undertaking due diligence and evaluation on the underlying
assets and provision of procedural and strategic advice to clients entering
into or realising an investment. The Group commenced two significant
service engagements in the year under review. One was engaged by a seller
intending to dispose of its interest in a hotel and commercial property with a
consideration of approximately HK$700 million, while the other intended to
dispose of its interest in certain residential properties with a consideration of
approximately HK$120 million. We will continue to put effort in expanding

our asset advisory services.

Corporate Services and Consultancy

This sector of the Group’s business is subdivided into two arms. One arm
is corporate consultancy, which mainly focuses on advising corporations
in areas such as corporate governance, internal control, enterprise risk
management and other operational aspects with a view to enhancing
corporate efficiency, performance and enterprise value. The other arm is
described as back office administration, which includes company secretarial
services for private and listed companies, human resources management and

administrative services, accounting and tax services, etc.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETR®E

PROSPECT

While the Western economies are still struggling to recover and the recent
disasters in Japan have brought uncertainties to the country and other
Asian economies, China has seen stable growth and is gaining a more
dominant role on the world’s stage. Hong Kong — a global financial hub
and the springboard for entry into China — is bound to benefit from such a
development and we are well-prepared to take advantage of the associated
emerging opportunities. In view of the increasing number of listings and
merger and acquisition activities as well as demand for professional services
in the Greater China region, the Group will look into potential acquisition
opportunities to extend our scope of services, achieve synergy with our
existing resources and expand our client base. The Group remains committed
to strengthening our revenue sources to create sustainable value to our

clients and returns that are aligned with the interests of our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | would like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the Board, our business
partners, all of our management and staff members, whose hard work and
support have made me confident that the Company is well-positioned to
sustain its robust development. The journey may be tough, but with the
unwavering dedication of our Board, management and staff, we are set to

grow stronger every step we take.

Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

Hong Kong
24 June 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE W&k

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2011 was approximately
HK$55.6 million (2010: approximately HK$50.9 million), representing an
increase of approximately 9.2% from that of 2010. The increase in the
Group's revenue during the year was mainly attributable to increased in asset
advisory services and asset appraisal income. During the year, the Group's
revenue from asset advisory services and asset appraisal was approximately
HK$52.5 million (2010: approximately HK$47.3 million), representing an

increase of approximately 11.0% from that of 2010.

The Group's cost of services contained mainly direct labour cost. During
the year, the Group's direct labour cost was approximately HK$11.9
million (2010: approximately HK$6.6 million), representing an increase of

approximately 80% from that of 2010.

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2011
was approximately HK$15.1 million (2010: approximately HK$8.2 million),
representing an increase of approximately 84.1% from that of 2010. The
increase in the Group’s administrative expenses during the year was mainly
attributable to increased in administrative staff cost and rental expenses.
During the year, the Group's administrative staff cost was approximately
HK$6.2 million (2010: approximately HK$3.2 million), representing an
increase of approximately 93.8% from that of 2010. During the year,
the Group's rental expenses was approximately HK$3.3 million (2010:
approximately HK$1.4 million), representing an increase of approximately

135.7% from that of 2010.

The increase in cost of services and administrative expenses were primarily
due to business expansion, especially into the segment of corporate services
and consultancy, resulting in increase in direct labour cost, administrative staff
cost and directors’ emoluments, employment of additional staff and increase

in rental expenses.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2011 was approximately HK$25.4 million (2010: approximately
HK$26.7 million), representing a decrease of approximately 4.9% from that
of 2010. The decrease was primarily due to the increment in total staff cost

was higher than that of revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The majority of the Group’s businesses are in Hong Kong and are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, and United States dollars.
The Group is of the opinion that its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk is

limited.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arises.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$8.7 million (31 March 2010: HK$7.6 million). As at 31
March 2011, the Group had net current assets of approximately HK$35.1
million (31 March 2010: HK$24.9 million). Current ratio as at 31 March 2011
was 3.1 (31 March 2010: 2.4).

The Group's operations and investments are financed principally by revenues
generated from business operations, available bank balances and the net
proceeds from the placing of the Company’s new shares in its listing (the
“Placing”). As at 31 March 2011, the Group had no borrowing and no
gearing ratio, which is defined as net debt (total borrowings net of cash and

bank balances) over total equity, is calculated (31 March 2010: Nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$1.1 million (2010:

HK$0.04 million) for acquisition of plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R DA

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group did not have any significant capital

commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'S
PLACING

The total net proceeds from the Placing amounted to approximately HK$78
million, which will be applied in accordance with the proposed application set
out in the section headed “Reasons for the placing and use of proceeds” in

the prospectus of the Company dated 25 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group employed approximately 55 (2010: 31)
full time employees including management and administrative staff. The
employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on both individual’s and Company’s performance, professional and
working experience and by reference to prevailing market practice and
standards. The Group regards quality staff as one of the key factors to

corporate success.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, aged 50, was appointed as the managing director and
an executive director of the Company in December 2010. He is the chairman
of the remuneration committee, a member of the executive committee
and the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He is one of the
founding directors of the Group and responsible for overall management
and development of the Group including frontline coordination with clients,
organizations as well as formulation of strategic development of the Group.
Mr. Ip is a Chartered Valuation Surveyor, a Registered Professional Surveyor
under the Surveyors Registration Ordinance of Hong Kong and a Registered
Business Valuer of the Hong Kong Business Valuation Forum. Mr. Ip who
graduated from the Faculty of Law of the University of Aberdeen in the
United Kingdom has practiced as a professional valuer since the early 1990's.
Before becoming a founding director of Greater China Appraisal Limited, Mr.
Ip had worked for RHL International Property Consultants as an executive
director from 1992 to 1994 and later on he was appointed as the managing
director and vice president of American Appraisal Hongkong Limited from

1994 to 1997.

Mr. Ip had been heavily involved in large scale appraisal projects for various
local and overseas clients, as well as clients in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), most of which are “H-share” or “red-chip” companies.
In addition to his professional appraisal experiences, his consulting expertise
includes advising on investment, planning and development strategies of real

estate.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Leung Siu Hong, aged 57, was appointed as an executive director in
December 2010. Mr. Leung is the chairman of nomination committee, the
compliance officer, a member of the executive committee and the director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company and is responsible for overall rules and
compliances of professional services. Mr. Leung graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with the
Associateship in Building Technology and Management, has started practice
as a professional since 1980s’. He had been employed by Frank & Vargeson
(HK) as senior quantity surveyor from 1983 to 1988. During the period from
1988 to 1991, Mr. Leung was employed by Charter Time Limited, a project
management consultancy firm as project manager. From 1991 to 1998, Mr.
Leung became the director of Beria Consultants Limited, a company engaged
in quantity surveying and project management consultancy. Since 1999, Mr.
Leung became the managing director of KL Partnership Limited, a company
set up by Mr. Leung and engaged in quantity surveying and construction cost
consultancy. He has been a shareholder of the Group since 1998 and became
a director of Greater China Appraisal Limited in March 2010. Mr. Leung is
a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, and a
member of The Chartered Institute of Building and The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter, aged 51, has been appointed by the
Company as the chairman and an independent non-executive director in
May 2011. He is a member of the remuneration committee, nomination
committee and audit committee of the Company. He received his Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Studies from the University of Bradford in England
and his Master of Science degree in Accounting and Finance from the
London School of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Au-Yang is a director
of AsiaSoft Company Limited which is the holding company of a group
with businesses in different sectors of the software industry. Prior to joining
AsiaSoft Company Limited, Mr. Au-Yang spent more than 20 years in the
financial services sector in the Asia Pacific region. He joined the Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation group (the “HSBC Group”) in 1985 and
became a co-head of Investment Banking, Asia Pacific of the HSBC Group in
2001. During his employment with the HSBC Group from 1985 to 2003, Mr.
Au-Yang worked on various equity capital fund-raising exercises and merger
and acquisition projects in the Asia Pacific region. He was an executive
director and the chief operating officer of The Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC") during the period from 2003 to 2006. In late 2004,
Mr. Au-Yang doubled up as the executive director in charge of the corporate
finance division of the SFC. Mr. Au-Yang is currently an independent non-
executive director of Telefield International (Holdings) Limited (stock code:

1143).
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wu Chi Keung, aged 54, has been appointed by the Company as the
independent non-executive director in May 2011. He is the chairman of the
audit committee, a member of the remuneration committee and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wu graduated from
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
1980 with a Higher Diploma in Accountancy. He is an associate of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr.
Wu has more than 29 years of experience in financial audit and specialises
in providing auditing and assurance services, financial due diligence reviews,
support services for merger and acquisitions, corporate restructuring and
fund raising engagements. Mr. Wu worked as an audit assistant at Touche
Ross & Co. from 1980 to 1982 and as an accountant at Bylamson &
Associates (Enterprises) Limited from 1982 to 1983. In 1983, he joined Kwan
Wong Tan & Fong until it merged with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in 1997.
Mr. Wu was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu when he resigned in
December 2008. Mr. Wu is currently an independent non-executive director
of China Medical System Holdings Limited (stock code: 867) and Jinchuan
Group International Resources Co. Ltd. (stock code: 2362), both companies

are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wan Kam To, aged 58, has been appointed by the Company as the
independent non-executive director in May 2011. He is a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Wan graduated from Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1975 with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Wan has over 30 years of experience
in auditing and advisory services. He joined PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong
Kong in 1975 and served as a partner of the firm from 1992 until retirement
in 2008. Mr. Wan is a Hong Kong Certified Public Accountant and is a fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association

of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wan currently holds the directorship in the following listed companies:

Company name

NREEE

BYFHUTES (8)

FREAERKFR T LR AR ZEETEERG:

Position held

EEBN

China Resources Land Limited (stock code: 1109), shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

EFHEMARAF (ORI 1109) - ERRAD AR PFER B

Dalian Port (PDA) Company Limited, shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2880) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601880)

REBRNBRDE AN APTER E (IR R5E: 2880) &
LEEAFZ SR L™ (B R5%:601880)

Fairwood Holdings Limited (stock code: 52), shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
KPUEEBEAR AR (BRHREE:52)  HIR ORI ER T

Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited (stock code: 958), shares of which

are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

FERMERRMDERAR (BIDR5E: 958) R NBE AR EH

Mindray Medical International Limited (NYSE: MR), shares of

which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange
B BRI AR AFINYSE : MR) HIRDRNALNESFZ S LN

RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (NASDAQ: RDA), shares of
which are listed on the Nasdaq Global Market

BRI EF ( L)8) BR R BI(NASDAQ : RDA) - ERMH A METE R
ESGE N}

Mr. Wan is a member of the Council of The Open University of Hong Kong

and serves as a member of the board of directors of several charitable

institutions in Hong Kong.
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Independent non-executive director and
chairman of audit committee

BUFATEERERZEEER

Independent non-executive director and

member of audit committee

BIUNTEENERREEKE

Independent non-executive director and
chairman of audit committee

BIUFNTEERNERZEGER

Independent non-executive director and member
of audit committee

BIUFNTEENERREEKE

Independent director and chairman of
audit committee
BWUYEENEREZERLE

Independent director and chairman of
audit committee
BIYIEERERERGEE

FRERBARHAARERE  MEBAEZHE
ERBHESZaNKE-
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Un Kwok Kee, John, aged 44, joined the Group as its head of finance
and administration in 2010. Mr. Un has over 22 years of experience in the
financial accounting, company secretarial field, initial public offering and
auditing. Mr. Un has been a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since 2001. In 2007, he obtained a Master degree in

Business Administration from University of Wales.

Ms. Fung Mei Ling, aged 41, joined the Group in 2010 and was appointed
as the head of compliance of the Group. She is responsible for the company
secretarial matters of the Group. Ms. Fung holds a Master of Finance degree
from Curtin University of Technology. Ms. Fung is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administration. She had been the company secretary of
certain listed companies in Hong Kong and has over 10 years of experience in
the area of company secretarial. She is also currently the company secretary
and authorised representative of Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited
(stock code: 310).

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 16
Annual Report 2011

EREEE

REIEKLE 4457 R2010F MMAREEEFE
MBRITRERMNEE REERMBE
RAWERE ARAFNEERERNEES
HBB22F &R - RELE2000FEREEES

2
REER URFHALAREAMAEERS

fAE
B 2007F R EBITAEZREIHER
1yt VA

BEBRLZL 4155 R2010F MAREE I
EZERAEEARMBAE -RABERNEEN
NEIWE F5% o 522 T+ F Curtin University of
Technologyw B IEE 241 o B T AEBIER

MERGRFAWMERITBRAEREEE 1
BRERAEEET EMARZARWETRAHE
MEFEREEE TFLR - KERNTRZER
BREBERAR (RO :310) 2 RAIWME
RixtER K-

s

o



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEREEREER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chu Hiu Fung, aged 37, is the head of internal control of the Group.
Mr. Chu has over 15 years of experience in the valuation industry. From
1995 to 1997, he worked in American Appraisal Hongkong Limited as valuer
during which his duties included asset inspection, assessing asset value and
preparing valuation report. Mr. Chu was then employed by RHL International
Property Consultants as manager responsible for fixed asset valuation during
the period from 1997 to 1998. He joined the Group in 1998 as manager of
the industrial facilities division of Greater China Appraisal Limited and was
promoted to senior manager of Greater China Appraisal Limited in 2002. He
was then promoted to associate — valuation project in 2005 and assistant
vice president in 2006. He is experienced in valuation of tangible assets and
is mainly responsible for our project management, coordination and review
of other valuers’” work. Mr. Chu is a member of International Association of
Consultants, Valuators and Analysts. Mr. Chu obtained his Bachelor degree

in Manufacturing Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Chan Yat Chiu, Samuel, aged 36, joined the Group as manager —
intangible assets and others in 2005 and is now the head of professional
and technical development of the Group. He is a Certified Valuation Analyst
of the International Association of Consultants, Valuators and Analysts,
Certified Mergers and Acquisitions Advisor of the Alliance of Merger and
Acquisition Advisors and associate member of the American Institute of
Minerals Appraisers. Mr. Chan is the vice president of education of the
China Charter of the International Association of Consultants, Valuators
and Analysts and lectured in the certification training of Certified Valuation
Analyst in China. He is one of the contributory authors of the book Guide
to Fair Value Under International Financial Reporting Standards published
in 2010. Mr. Chan obtained his Bachelor degree in Corporate Finance from
the University of Toledo and Master degree in Business Administration from

Cleveland State University in the United States.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERERER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Cheung Kam Shing, Terry, aged 48, joined the Group in 2010 as
the head of business development of the Group responsible for the overall
operations of Greater China Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited. He
holds a bachelor degree in social science from the University of Hong Kong
and obtained a master degree in science from the University of London. He
has over 25 years of experience in finance industry including investment
banking, fund management, and listed companies. From 1984 to 1986, Mr.
Cheung worked in a securities company as sales executive. From 1986 to
1989, he was employed as a securities dealer by an investment management
company. Mr. Cheung was then employed by a securities company as
marketing manager during the period from 1989 to 1991. From 1991 to
1994, he worked in another securities company as manager. Mr. Cheung
was employed by a finance house from 1994 to 2000 as senior manager
responsible for equity sales activities of Hong Kong and other Asian securities
markets. From 2000 to 2005, he was appointed as the managing director
of Culturecom Holdings Limited, a company engaged in publishing at
the time, in charge of its investment department. He was responsible for
various areas including business planning, due diligence, financial analysis
and structuring transactions. During the period from 2005 to 2010, Mr.
Cheung was appointed as the managing director of a private investment
company, a company whose principal business is investment, and his duties
mainly include real estate and other direct investment. He is currently the
independent non-executive director of the China Medical System Holdings

Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Li Qi, age 46, joined the Group in 2006 as the chief representative of
the Group's Beijing representative office and is the director and the legal
representative of J2EE IF 7 EAREIRFHH (JLR) AR A A She graduated
from Beijing Union University with a Bachelor degree in Science in 1986 and
obtained her Bachelor of Economics degree in Financial Accounting from
Renmin University of China in 1998. She is a Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Public Valuer in the PRC. Before joining the Group, she worked in
several accounting firms and asset appraisal firms in the PRC. In 2007, Ms. Li
worked in FEEEEBRRE LA A as deputy general manager. She was
then employed by Jt 7 /1 58 & ZE= 51 {& A R 2 7 as deputy general manager
in 2008 and joined dt R RIEEEE EFTH B R A F as deputy general
manager in 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERRE

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to

present the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 March 2011.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and enhance its
corporate value. The Company'’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing

Rules.

Throughout the period from the date of listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange on 31 May 2011 to the date of this report, the
Company had complied with the code provisions in the CG Code with the
exception of the code provision A.2.1. Details of such deviation will be

explained below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for overseeing
the overall strategy and development of the Company, as well as monitoring
the internal control policies and evaluating the financial performance of the
Group. The Board sets the overall strategies and directions for the Group with

a view to developing its business and enhancing the shareholders value.

The Board of Directors meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy, monitor business development as well as the financial
performance of the Group. The Board has delegated certain duties and
authorities to the management for the day-to-day management of the

Group's operation.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board currently comprises two executive directors, namely Mr. Ip Kwok
Kwong (managing director) and Mr. Leung Siu Hong, and three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (chairman),
Mr. Wu Chi Keung and Mr. Wan Kam To. Owing to the fact that the Company
was listed after the reporting period, no full board meeting was held during

the year ended 31 March 2011.

An executive committee of the Company was formed comprising of two
executive directors, namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and Mr. Leung Siu Hong and
the management, namely Mr. Wong Chi Keung. The executive committee
was to enhance the day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to be run effectively and was delegated by the Board of certain duties and
authority relating to the areas in accounting operation of the Group and

contracting with outsiders in the ordinary course of business of the Group.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-executive
directors (the “INED") with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The INEDs, together with the executive Directors, ensure that the
Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict compliance
with the relevant standards. The Company has received an annual
confirmation of independence from each of the INEDs and believes that their

independence is in compliance the GEM Listing Rules.

The term of appointment of each INED is for a period of three years, subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the

Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company does not at present have any officer with the title of
chief executive officer (“CEQ") but instead the duties of a CEO are performed
by Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, the Managing Director of the Company, in the same
capacity as the CEO of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERRE

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The Company has
confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors
have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings throughout the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee in May 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The
remuneration committee comprises one executive director and two INEDs,
namely Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi

Keung. The committee is chaired by Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are formulating
remuneration policies, determining the specific remuneration packages of
executive directors and senior management and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors. The directors are
remunerated with reference to their respective duties and responsibility with

the Company, the Company's performance and the current market situation.

Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting period, no
remuneration committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 March

2011.

Directors are also the eligible participants under the share option scheme of
the Company as disclosed in the report of the directors in this report. Details
of emoluments of the Directors from the Group for the year are as disclosed
in note 13 to the financial statements and the retirement benefit schemes is

disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
G EERBE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee in May 2011 with
written terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The nomination
committee comprises one executive director and two INEDs, namely Mr.
Leung Siu Hong, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter and Mr. Wu Chi Keung. The

committee is chaired by Mr. Leung Siu Hong.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, formulating relevant procedures
for nomination of directors, identifying qualified individuals to become
members of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors. The nomination should be
taken into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, ability and potential

contributions to the Company.

Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting period, no
nomination committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 March

2011.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee in May 2011 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The audit committee
comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wu Chi Keung, Mr. Au-Yang Cheong
Yan, Peter and Mr. Wan Kam To. The committee is chaired by Mr. Wu Chi
Keung. The audited annual results of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2011 have been reviewed by the audit committee members who have

provided advice and comments thereon.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The primary duties of the audit committee are to supervise the internal
control policies, the financial reporting systems and procedures of the
Company, to review the financial statements and reports of the Group, and to

review the terms of engagement and the scope of audit work of the auditor.

Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting period, no

audit committee meeting was held during the year ended 31 March 2011.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for overseeing the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant

doubt upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2011 is set out in the section “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this

report.
During the year, remuneration paid and payable to the auditor of the Group

are approximately HK$250,000 for audit services and HK$2,175,000 for non-

audit services, respectively.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the assets of the Company against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring
maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of reliable
financial information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant rules and

regulations.

Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting period and
the Board was formed with INED after the reporting period, no review on the

effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group was conducted.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is a key
to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely

disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business developments
and financial performance through its annual, interim and quarterly reports.
The corporate website of the Company (www.gca.com.hk) has provided an

effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their first report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the period from 3 December 2010 (date
of incorporation) to 31 March 2011 and the Group for the year ended 31
March 2011. The Company listed on the Stock Exchange on 31 May 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 2 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 44 to 115.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year (2010: Nil).

REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands on 3 December 2010. Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 18 May 2011. On
31 May 2011, the shares of the Company have been listed on the GEM board
of the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS
(CONTINUED)

As part of the preparation for listing of the shares of the Company, the
Company implemented an issue of 125,000,000 new shares during its initial
public offering (the “IPO") and a capitalisation issue of 374,999,000 shares
in 2011. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the 125,000,000
new shares were issued at par value of HK$0.01 per share. The gross
proceeds of the IPO received by the Company were approximately HK$90
million, and the net proceeds were approximately HK$78 million. Details
of the plan for the use of proceeds from the IPO are set out in the section
headed “Reasons for the Placing and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As

at the date of this report, the net proceeds have not yet been used.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last three financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements and the Prospectus, is set out on page 116.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial statements in this

report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are set

out in note 17 to the financial statements in this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set

out in note 26 to the financial statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The shares of the Company were first listed on the GEM board of the Stock
Exchange on 31 May 2011. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities after

listing.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements and in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had no distributable reserves.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the year are disclosed in

note 32 to the financial statements in this annual report.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Prior to the Listing Date, the Group has entered into the following
transactions with the following parties, which will be connected persons of
the Company upon the listing. All of these transactions will continue after the
listing of shares on GEM and constitute continuing connected transactions

(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company.

Relationship between the Group and each of the
relevant connected persons

KP Cheng & Co., Certified Public Accountants (“KP Cheng & Co.”) is a
partnership business set up in Hong Kong on 22 February 1993. Mr. Cheng
Kam Por (“Mr. Cheng”) is the sole proprietor of KP Cheng & Co. Mr. Cheng
is interested in 29.32% of the issued share capital of Smart Pick Investments
Limited (“Smart Pick”). Smart Pick is interested in 51% of Genius Ideas
International Ltd. (“Genius Ideas”). Genius Ideas is interested in 73% of GCA
Professional Services Group Limited (“GCA Professional”). GCA Professional
is interested in 100% of the issued share capital of Brilliant One Holdings
Limited (“Brilliant One"). Brilliant One interested in 75% of the issued share

capital of the Company upon the listing.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Relationship between the Group and each of the
relevant connected persons (Continued)

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited (“Prosperity Investment”) is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose shares are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 310). Prosperity
Investment is indirectly interested in the entire issued share capital of Simply
Joy Investments Limited (“Simply Joy”). Simply Joy is interested in 20% of
GCA Professional. GCA Professional is interested in the entire issued share
capital of Brilliant One. Brilliant One interested in 75% of the issued share

capital of the Company upon the listing.

Glorious Bright Limited (”Glorious Bright”) is a company incorporated in
Hong Kong on 17 May 2000 with limited liability. Glorious Bright is an

indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Prosperity Investment.

GR Investment International Limited (“GR Investment International”)
(now known as Prosperity Management Services Limited) is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 5 November 1985 with limited liability. GR
Investment International is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Prosperity

Investment.

Greater China Capital Limited (“GC Capital”) is a company incorporated
in Hong Kong on 30 June 1992 with limited liability. GC Capital is a direct
wholly owned subsidiary of GCA Professional. GCA Professional is interested
in the entire issued share capital of Brilliant One. Brilliant One interested in

75% of the issued share capital of the Company upon the listing.

Under the GEM Listing Rules, for so long as each of KP Cheng & Co.,
Prosperity Investment, Glorious Bright, GR Investment International and
GC Capital remains a connected person of the Company, the transactions

described below constituted connected transactions upon the listing.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Lease between the Group and connected persons
with rental income receiving from connected person

Lease by Linkson Investment Limited (“Linkson”) in relation to an
office in Hong Kong

On 26 July 2010, Linkson (as tenant) entered into an agreement with Hang
Lung Real Estate Agency Limited as agent for AP Success Limited (the
“Landlord”) pursuant to which the Landlord agreed to lease an office located
at room 2701-02 and 2703-08 on the 27th Floor of Shui On Centre at 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the “Property”) for the period of three

years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2012.

On 11 August 2010, Linkson, the Landlord, Greater China Appraisal Limited,
Greater China Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited ("GCCCS"), KP
Cheng & Co., Prosperity Investment and Glorious Bright (the “Other Users”)
entered into a guarantee and indemnity. Pursuant to the said guarantee and
indemnity, the Landlord has no objection to the Other Users to hold, use and

occupy the Property.

On 6 December 2010, Linkson and KP Cheng & Co. entered into a licence
agreement (the “KP Cheng Licence Agreement”), pursuant to which Linkson
agreed to licence a portion of the Property to KP Cheng & Co., for a period of
three years commencing from 1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December
2012. The details of the payment terms under the KP Cheng Licence
Agreement are contained in the Prospectus headed “Continuing connected
transactions”. During the year, an amount of approximately HK$1.2 million

was classified as continuing connected transactions under this agreement.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

The payment terms under the KP Cheng Licence Agreement was calculated
based on the proportion of floor area occupied by KP Cheng & Co in the

Property and market rent at similar premises at the relevant time.

On 16 December 2010, Linkson and Prosperity Investment entered into
a licence agreement (the "“Prosperity Investment Licence Agreement”),
pursuant to which Linkson agreed to licence a portion of the Property
to Prosperity Investment, for a period of three years commencing from
1 January 2010 and expiring on 31 December 2012. The details of the
payment terms under the Prosperity Investment Licence Agreement are
contained in the Prospectus headed “Continuing connected transactions”.
During the year, an amount of approximately HK$1.2 million was classified as

continuing connected transactions under this agreement.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's above
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in accordance with the GEM
Listing Rule 20.38. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. Based on this letter from the auditor and
after their own review, the independent non-executive directors of the
Company confirm the Continuing Connected Transactions for the year have
been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company; (b) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal commercial
terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (c) in accordance with
the Agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 30
Annual Report 2011

BFEBRERS ®)

R IR F R 15 TR D Y R IR R T AR IR EB 87
MG FHEN BB R EIE R EEHEAEL
PIRBUER R RN SHEETH -

2010F12 168 - (3 M ER E T 7T
A ((REREFATHZE]) Bt EHRR
BRHZVEN DO AIBTRERE H
2010FF1 A1 HRZE2012F12A318)EH - BH
=F o mERETAIREE TN RIERFE
HRBRER FERERS ] — 8- RFER-
©FAI1,200,00078 TTHIEAR 12 TH T 5B R
e

ARABZBMOEZE  URBEEZERE
#ERII 530005 [ B L EB B AR B E R ASH
ZEBRE]  T2REBAGHMASEMZE
Bt AR 7405 (BN EE (EMRAD Ardtss
BB SZHBEN R AREIA L2255
BRBEXSEHRE - RIBAIZER EWARRE
20.38fF LA L E B A REATRE 2 FE
MER G2 EBE/ERNER BHEAEER
BER 2 mt - AR B E AP iR i% 2Em
R BN © IRAREZAZ BT bR 1 R IR A 8]
Blg ARBZBIUFNTESHR AFE
ZEBREXH@QENARRN—REAEE
BBRHTEIL D)% FR 5 ERB—RAEBF
FOETT  RIAA LB E R 5 TR A KB % F
RHWGFES —RABERR A AEEM
B REXRZNERTERBILE =77 G
AR (HER) MIER ROKFXHZRE
BERSHHHRETET MXBERRFE
B W EANAEARRRRAERFE-



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
52.6% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer

amounted 10 25.4%.

None of Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the listed issuers share

capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee was established for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market practices. The
Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to Directors and
eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the paragraph headed

“Share Option Scheme” below.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company since the Listing Date and up to the date of

this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (appointed on 3 December 2010)
(Managing Director)

Mr. Leung Siu Hong (appointed on 30 December 2010)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Au-Yang Cheong Yan, Peter (appointed on 18 May 2011)
(Chairman)
Mr. Wu Chi Keung (appointed on 18 May 2011)

Mr. Wan Kam To (appointed on 18 May 2011)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with articles 83 to 85 of the Company'’s article of association,
all the Directors will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The independent

non-executive directors are appointed for a period of three years.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors and as at the date of this report,
the Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors are

independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the

Group are set out on pages 11 to 18 of this report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from their respective
date of appointment and will continue thereafter. Each of the independent
non-executive directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from their respective
date of appointment. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to its

articles of association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its

subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2011, the shares of the Company were not listed on the
Stock Exchange. The respective Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong (the “SFO"), Section 352 of the SFO
and Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were not applicable.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(CONTINUED)

As of the date of this report, interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or have been entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company

EERIETHABRAAAR
SLAEEE 2 B 15 RBR R
% 2 Ml RO R ()
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(a) RARATEREE0.01ETHR
DHNEFR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued share

Name Nature of interests Shares held capital
EBRTRA

HE EmE RO E BHESL
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%

(“Mr. Ip") (Note 1)

BRIy ([EEED ZEGEE O ER
(Kt7E1)
Note:

1. 375,000,000 shares are held by Brilliant One which is wholly-owned
by GCA Professional. GCA Professional is owned as to 73% by Genius
Ideas which is owned as to 51% by Smart Pick and 6.12% by Mr.
Ip. Smart Pick is owned as to 58.76% by GC Holdings Limited (“GC
Holdings"”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Long position in the shares of associated

EERFETHRAEBRERTR
HEBEE 2RO HERO R
BE2EBERAE (#)

(b) REEEERONETR

corporation
Approximate
percentage
of interest in
Name of associated Number of associated
Name corporation Nature of interests Shares held corporation
RBEEB K
EEBN
HE HEEE S ERME FRERGHE Bot
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Brilliant One Interest in controlled corporation 200 100%
BhE (K1) Brilliant One REHEE R
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GCA Professional Interest in controlled corporation 730 73%
TR (HET) BERE EEGEEN#ER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Genius Ideas Interest in controlled corporation 5,100 51%
Bk (KiET) Genius Ideas REHAE N ERS
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Genius Ideas Beneficial owner 612 6.12%
oA (KF1) Genius Ideas BEmfB A
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Smart Pick Interest in controlled corporation 5,876 58.76%
Bk (KiET) Smart Pick REHAE N ER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) GC Holdings Beneficial owner 1 100%
TR (BET) GC Holdings BEmnfBA
Mr. Leung Siu Hong Smart Pick Beneficial owner 1,192 11.92%
("Mr. Leung”) (Note 2)
BIRFES A ([R5EE])  Smart Pick BEREE A
(ft:t2)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Long position in the shares of associated
corporation (Continued)

Notes:

1. The Company is owned as to 75% by Brilliant One. Brilliant One is
wholly-owned by GCA Professional which is owned as to 73% by
Genius Ideas. Genius Ideas is owned as to 51% by Smart Pick and
6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick is owned as to 58.76% by GC Holdings
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip.

2. The Company is owned as to 75% by Brilliant One. Brilliant One is
wholly-owned by GCA Professional which is owned as to 73% by
Genius Ideas. Genius Ideas is owned as to 51% by Smart Pick which
is owned as to 11.92% by Mr. Leung.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2011, the shares of the Company were not listed on the
Stock Exchange. So far as the Directors are aware, as at the date of this
report, the following persons/entities have an interest or a short position in
the shares or the underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which would be recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO, or who will be, directly or indirectly, to
be interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the

Company or any other members of the Group:

BRERFRBEXRIIBEENES
REERR

201143 A318 AR RN W EFI AT _E
MoRMEFNE NAREBE UTAL &
BRROSEBROFEEAREFESRBE
GBI EEXVERE2 ] 357 B SC [MI AN 1 B 452 58 2 1
mek R - IRBESF R EKRAIEIB6IKFE
MARR BRSNS AR SBE
ok AR SRR AT E A ER TRAR
AIRAEBEREMK B AR ZRREAERR
Z AR R AN TE B 10% 3% bA -1

knl

=

\

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued share
Name Nature of interests Shares held capital
BEITRA
=% EEME RO E BHREI L
Brilliant One (Note 1) Beneficial owner 375,000,000 75%
Brilliant One (#14%1) EnEAA
GCA Professional (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%
EEEE (1) REHEE
Genius Ideas (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%
Genius Ideas (#7z#1) REfEE O ER
Smart Pick (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%
Smart Pick (#/7£1) REHEBMER
Easy Gain Development Limited Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%
("Easy Gain") (Note 1)
Easy Gain Development Limited 42 #15% B A
(TEasy Gain | ) (#taE1)
GC Holdings (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%
GC Holdings (#7:%1) REthEE O ER
Mr. Ip (Note 1) Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%
B (M) ZEHEE R
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Interest in controlled corporation 375,000,000 75%

("Mr. Wong") (Note 1)
s ([|EED(MET)

PR A ) pE s
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INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (CONTINUED)

Note:

1. Brilliant One is wholly-owned by GCA Professional which is owned as to
73% by Genius Ideas. Genius Ideas is owned as to 51% by Smart Pick,
42.88% by Easy Gain and 6.12% by Mr. Ip. Smart Pick is owned as to
58.76% by GC Holdings which is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip. Easy Gain is
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to

acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, and the substantial shareholders had any interests in
any business, which competed with or might compete with the business of

the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

As to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional incentive
to them and to promote the success of the business of the Group, the
Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
18 May 2011 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) to the eligible participant, including
Director and employee, as defined in the Scheme. The Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the date on
which the Scheme was adopted, subject to the early termination provisions

contained in the Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Scheme is 50,000,000 Shares and represents 10% of the issued

share capital of the Company.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable
by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of the offer
for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price of a Share in
respect of any particular option granted under the Scheme shall be a price
solely determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date
of grant of the option provided always that for the purpose of calculating
the subscription price, where the Company has been listed on the Stock
Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the issue price shall be used as the

closing price for any trading day fall within the period before the Listing Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in issue from
the Listing Date. The Company may at any time refresh such limit, subject to
the shareholders” approval and issue of a circular in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules, provided that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under all the share option schemes of the Company does not exceed 30%
of the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to

the provisions of early termination thereof.

Since the adoption of the Scheme, no share option has been granted by the

Company.
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COMPLIANCE ADVISOR'S INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2011 neither Grand Vinco Capital Limited and Emperor
Capital Limited (the “Joint Compliance Advisors”) nor any of its directors,
employees or associates had any interests in the shares of the Company
or any member of the Group, or any right to subscribe for or to nominate
persons to subscribe for the shares of the Company or any member of the

Group.

Pursuant to the compliance advisor agreement entered into with the
Company and the Joint Compliance Advisors in 2011, the Joint Compliance
Advisors received and will receive fees for acting as the Company’s

compliance advisor for the period commencing on the Listing Date.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. Since its listing on the
Stock Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
CG Code, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance

Report in this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued

share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWmE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 33 to the

financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2011 have been
audited by the Company’s auditor, RSM Nelson Wheeler, who shall retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ip Kwok Kwong

Managing Director

Hong Kong
24 June 2011
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RSM Nelson Wheeler
FIREE (B8 5=
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GREATERCHINA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of GreaterChina
Professional Services Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 115, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2011, and of the Group's results and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 June 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

B 2201193 H31H1FFE
2011 2010
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
B 5 FERT FHIT
Turnover =4 7 55,626 50,870
Cost of services ARG AK AR (13,932) (8,451)
Gross profit EX 41,694 42,419
Other income H A 4 A 8 2,867 743
Marketing expenses SRR (203) (297)
Administrative expenses THAX (15,135) (8,185)
Other operating expenses Hibh B (590) (1,207)
Profit from operations mEERR 28,633 33,473
Finance costs U AN 10 - (1)
Profit before tax FRBE A% F 28,633 33,472
Income tax expense FriSHif X 11 (3,206) (3,808)
Profit for the year FEEA 12 25,427 29,664
Other comprehensive income, Hit2EKA
net of tax: Ptk
Exchange differences on translating BME SN HE N R
foreign operations 15 -
Total comprehensive income FEXEBRALE
for the year 25,442 29,664
Profit for the year attributable to: BUTATEEFEERR:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGIEZ 2N 25,427 26,727
Non-controlling interests FEVE B M 2 - 2,937
25,427 29,664
Total comprehensive income for the LT ATEEEEZEBA
year attributable to: FOE G
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGIEZ 2N 25,442 26,727
Non-controlling interests FEVE I M 2 - 2,937
25,442 29,664
Earnings per share BR2F
Basic (HK cents) EAR (L) 16 6.78 7.13




At 31 March 2011

R20114F3H31H
2011 2010
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
201145 20104
B = FET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BEREE 17 1,224 406
Investment in an associate REEE N AR E 18 - =
1,224 406
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 19 5,643 29,373
Prepayments, deposits and TERT IR ke R HAD
other receivables U FRIE 5,906 1,139
Amounts due from related parties JE UK B 3 5 FRIE 20 31,418 3,531
Pledged bank deposits BEHIRITER 21 - 1,126
Bank and cash balances IR1TRIR e 6k 21 8,708 7,590
51,675 42,759
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 IE 22 1,342 1,811
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R E M B RUE 3,498 2,317
Amounts due to related parties FEfT A& 75 BUR 23 8,249 53
Dividend payable JEAS R R - 10,803
Current tax liabilities mEBRIEEE 3,469 2,882
16,558 17,866
Net current assets REEEFE 35,117 24,893
NET ASSETS EEFE 36,341 25,299
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital A& A 26 3,200 3,200
Reserves i 27 33,141 22,099
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 36,341 25,299

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2011.

Ip Kwok Kwong
EEX
Director

BF

BEEEN2011F6 7248 8Lk -

Leung Siu Hong
RIKEE
Director

BF



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B %5 7R O 3R

At 31 March 2011

R20114F3H31H
2011
NOTES HK$'000
20114
iEsd FHT
Current liabilities REAE
Due to a subsidiary F& 5 — R Fft BB 2 Rl 3R 0A 23 1
Capital and reserves BEXR B
Share capital B 26 -
Reserves ] 27(b) (1)
(1)

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2011.

Ip Kwok Kwong
EBEX
Director

EZE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

—u— 7
N o #54
n‘/T\ 1:

=B R

For the year ended 31 March 2011

EZE2011F3A31HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
RAREEAER
Capital Exchange Non-
Share reserve reserve Retained controlling Total
capital (note 27(c) (i)  (note 27(c) (i)) profits Total interests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXRGE ERG#E
(MzE27 (M sx27 FeHR I
R (©)i)) (c)i)) REBEF @t i £ BEaE
FTHT FTHET TET THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2009 #2009F4 718 1,880 (1,099) - 4,248 5,029 3,911 8,940
Total comprehensive income FEZARALERE
for the year - - - 26,727 26,727 2,937 29,664
Interim dividend declared by REARAERF SRS
subsidiaries (note 15) (KtzE15) - - - (11,035) (11,035) (2,270) (13,305)
Effect of group reorganisation SEEANTE 1,320 3,258 = = 4,578 (4,578) =
Changes in equity for the year FERGZY 1,320 3,258 - 15,692 20,270 (3,911) 16,359
At 31 March 2010 and #2010F3A318 &
1 April 2010 2010F4A18 3,200 2,159 - 19,940 25,299 - 25,299
Total comprehensive income FEZAKAEE
for the year - - 15 25,427 25,442 - 25,442
Interim dividends declared by MEARSRT RS
subsidiaries (note 15) (PF#E15) - - - (14,400) (14,400) - (14,400)
Changes in equity for the year FEERE - = 15 11,027 11,042 = 11,042
At 31 March 2011 #20114F3A318 3,200 2,159 15 30,967 36,341 - 36,341
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

B 2201193 H31H1FFE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
F#&xT FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRERE
Profit before tax BR 50 Al A 28,633 33,472
Adjustments for: AT HIEFE :
Allowance for trade receivables B 5 WG IEE S 945 1,090
Reversal of allowance for trade receivables 2 Z REBGRIERER T (1,254) =
Bad debts written off 2 IR 899 15
Allowance for amounts due from JRE s B s N B SRIE B
related companies - 102
Depreciation e 273 262
Finance costs B 7% AR - 1
Interest income FEHBA (21) (15)
Operating profit before working capital changes BEESBEFILLEN 29,475 34,927
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 2B S RWGRIER D () 23,140 (25,771)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TR IR ~ H I H At FE R
other receivables TE #8110 (4,767) (160)
Decrease in trade payables 2 5 FEfS sRIER (469) (1,986)
Increase in accruals and other payables JEETIE B K E b~ R IE 0 1,181 917
Cash generated from operations KEMBHRE 48,560 7,927
Income tax paid ERATEH (2,620) (1,054)
Finance costs paid B B 75 A AR - (1)
Net cash generated from operating activities K EESINE F8E 45,940 6,872
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHRERE
Interest received 2 F S 21 15
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWME BEMEE (1,091) (39)
Decrease,/ (increase) in pledged bank deposits BEHRITERURLD (M) 1,126 (1)
Net cash generated from,” (used in) BEFBMG (R ZHES
investing activities R 56 (25)




For the year ended 31 March 2011

B FE20119F3A31HIEFE
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FET FHT
Cash flows from financing activities RETHRERE
Increase in amounts due from related parties JrE s A 3 75 SRIE 12 N (27,887) (2,460)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FE BB 5 IR R (2,803) (630)
Dividends paid 2IRE (14,203) (2,502)
Net cash used in financing activities B ESFTRIR S 5 (44,893) (5,592)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BHERREESEYEMFEEE 1,103 1,255
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREHMZE 15 =
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year S{IWEREEREBELEEY 7,590 6,335
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FERNBESRBESEEY 8,708 7,590
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents (note 21) BE&RRESZ@Y A4 (MIE 21)
Bank and cash balances IRITRIB S8R 8,708 7,590




For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability on 3
December 2010. The address of its registered office of the Cayman
Islands is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is Room 2703, 27th Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities

of its subsidiaries are set out in note 2 to the financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 March 2011,
Brilliant One Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“B.V.l."), is the immediate parent; GC Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the B.V.I, is the ultimate parent and Mr. Ip

Kwok Kwong is the ultimate controlling party of the Company.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 31 May 2011 (the “Listing Date").

The companies now comprising the Group are under the common
control of Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong (the “Controlling Shareholder”).
Pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”)
which is more fully explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate
reorganisation” in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company
dated 25 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”), the Company acquired the
entire interests of New Valiant Limited and Fidelia Investments Limited
and their subsidiaries on 18 May 2011 by way of swap of shares, and

the Company became the holding company of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
E220119F3431HIFFZ

During the period from 12 May 2008 to 25 January 2010, one of the
subsidiaries, Greater China Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited,
was owned beneficially as to 51% by GCA Holdings Limited, while
BVD Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited, a company beneficially
owned by Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Ms. Kwok Sin Man, Vince, acted
as the nominees of GCA Holdings Limited. Since GCA Holdings Limited
was controlled by the Controlling Shareholder, Greater China Corporate
Consultancy & Services Limited was also controlled by the Controlling

Shareholder during the year.

As the Company and the Group were both controlled by the Controlling
Shareholder before and after the Group Reorganisation, the Group
Reorganisation was accounted for as a business combination of
entities under common control. The financial statements have been
prepared based on the principles and procedures of merger accounting
in accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for
Common Control Combinations” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, as if the Group Reorganisation had
occurred from the date when the combining entities first came under

the control of the Controlling Shareholder.

The financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities as if they had been combined from the date when

they first came under the control of the Controlling Shareholder.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

B E2011F3H31HIFF/E
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flows include the results and cash flows of the
combining entities from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the combining entities first came under the common control,
where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common

control combination.

The consolidated statement of financial position have been prepared
to present the assets and liabilities of the combining entities as if the
Group structure immediately after the Group Reorganisation had been
in existence at the end of each reporting period. The net assets of the
combining entities are combined using the existing book values from
the Controlling Shareholder’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at the time of
common control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the

Controlling Shareholder’s interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net profit or
loss of any combining entities in order to achieve consistency of the

Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HE2011F3H31HIFF/ZF

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the subsidiaries immediately after the Group

Reorganisation are as follows:

Place/date of
incorporation/

Issued and

2. MBRHMROEREE )

EEEEEARNMBRRNFBENT

Percentage of

ownership interest/voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
B E{Eﬁggﬁﬁ/ﬁgﬁzﬁm
Wi A R B8 B, B ERTRARES DIERFEDL TEER
20114 20104
Directly held:
EEEE:
New Valiant Limited B.V.I. 4 ordinary 100% - Investment holding
RERLES shares of REERK
28 July 2010 US$1 each
20107 H28H 4%
SREEIXT
#) % B A
Fidelia Investments Limited B.V.I. 4 ordinary 100% - Investment holding
RERELHS shares of REZER
12 November 2010 US$1 each
2010511 3128 4f%
BREEIERT
#) & B A
53 EEEXERBERDA
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

EZ2011FE3H31HIFFZF
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 2. BIBBROEREE 9

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
M @{Eiﬁgéﬁﬁ/?ﬁggﬁm
WELRER B, B BRTRARESR DERFEDL TEEH
20116 20104
Indirectly held:
M#EEE:
Greater China Appraisal Limited ~ Hong Kong 1,600,000 100% 100% Provision of asset
EEFEERAA B ordinary shares of appraisal services
20 August 1997 HK$1 each R EE T RS
199748 H20H 1,600,000/
BREEIET
) E B
Best Aim Consultant Ltd. B.V.I. 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Inactive
KBRS of US$1 each EE
2 February 2010 1REREE
201042 A2H 1ETHERR
Asset-Plus Global Limited B.VII. 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Provision of asset
RERLHS of US$1 each advisory services
23 July 1997 2R EREE and corporate
199747 A23R 1E TR E AR consultancy services
R4 B 2 R R AR S &
DEFARS
Greater China Corporate Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Provision of corporate
Consultancy & Services Limited &7 of HK$1 each services and
BEMERBAER AT 15 November 2004 2REREE consultancy
2004114158 BT LB REE RS RFEH
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 54
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
Bl 2201193531 HIFFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Place/date of
incorporation/

Issued and

2. BIBBROEREE 5

Percentage of
ownership interest/voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
M, mﬁﬁggﬁﬁ/?’igﬁzﬁm
WELRER B, B BRTRAMRESR DERFEDL TEEH
20115 20104
GCA Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,600,000 100% 100% Investment holding
EESE () AR AR &5 ordinary shares BEER
20 August 2004 of HK$1 each
200458 A20H 1,600,000%
BREEIET
oSl
Linkson Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Sub-leasing of office
(note (a)) BB of HK$1 each DHEPAE
EHRKREBRAR (MizE@) 3 December 1999 28R
1999412 A3H BREEVET
oSl
Hanhua Zhenli Zi Ben Zi Xun The People’s Republic Registered 100% 100% Provision of
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (note (b)) of China ("PRC") capital of consultancy services
RELVERNEEZH (ER) FEARLME HK$200,000 R AIRS
BR7 (KHEEb) (THE) FEE 2
23 February 2010 200,000/ 7T
201062 H23H
Notes: BisE

(@)  Linkson Investment Limited was acquired by GCA Professional Services
Group Limited (formerly known as “GC Associates Limited"”), a
company controlled by the Controlling Shareholder, on 23 February
2010. It first came under the control of the Controlling Shareholder

since then.

(b)  English names for identification purpose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

B E2011F3H31HIFF/E
3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
period beginning on 1 April 2010. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group's financial statements and amounts reported

for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results

of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

convention.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
E220119F3431HIFFZ

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these

financial statements are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these

financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
March. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether

the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date

the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies

adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 220119F3A31H IFFZ

(b) Merger accounting for business combination

(9]

under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities as if they had been
combined from the date when they first came under the control

of the controlling party.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income and
consolidated statements of cash flows include the results and cash
flows of the combining entities from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the

date of the common control combination.

The consolidated statements of financial position have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities as if the current Group structure had been in existence at
the end of each reporting period. The net assets of the combining
entities are combined using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in respect
of goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the

controlling party's interest.

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date

fair values.
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B 220119F3A31HIFFZF

(9]

(d)

Business combination (other than under
common control) and goodwill (Continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the

Company.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policies of an entity but is not control
or joint control over those policies. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant

influence.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of
each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of

acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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(d) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not

recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group's share
of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated exchange

reserve.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted

by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

(e) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at

the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of that

gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 22011F3A31H IFFZF

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(i) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company's presentation currency are translated into the

Company's presentation currency as follows:

—  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at

the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange

rates on the transaction dates); and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the exchange reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain

or loss on disposal.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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(f) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal

useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 4 to 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years
Office equipment 4 1o 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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B 22011F3A31H IFFZF

(9)

(h)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party

to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised

in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss.
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0)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market and are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment. An allowance
for impairment of trade and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is the difference
between the receivables’ carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of the allowance

is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the
restriction that the carrying amount of the receivables at the date
the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised

cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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()

(k)

)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also

included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out from notes 4() to

4(m) to the financial statements.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(m) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of

revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the provision of asset appraisal services and
corporate services and consultancy is recognised when the
services are rendered and the transactions can be measured
reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transactions will flow to the Group. Revenue from
progressively billed asset appraisal services is recognised by
reference to the percentage of completion of the transaction.
Revenue from appraisal services which are billed one-off are only
recognised when it is probable that the customers are willing
to settle the billing, which generally coincide with the reports
issue dates. Revenue from the provision of corporate services
and consultancy with specified period is generally recognised on
a straight-line basis over the period of services. Revenue from
success-based corporate services and consultancy is recognised
when the agreed financial targets as set out in the agreements

such as turnover of the customers are met.

Revenue from the provision of asset advisory services is recognised
when the revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transactions will
flow to the Group, i.e. fixed fee revenue is recognised when
the relevant reports incidental to the transactions, such as due
diligence investigation, viability study and evaluation of the target
investment, is issued, and success-based revenue is recognised
when the customers receives or pays the considerations of the

underlying transactions.

Sub-leasing income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.
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(o) Employee benefits

(i)

(ir)

(iff)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all eligible employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss

represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is

without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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(p) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the

purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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(q) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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(q) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax

assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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(r) Related parties

A party is related to the Group if:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the
party controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or has joint control over

the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a joint venture;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of

the Company or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual

referred to in (i) or (iv);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any

individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related

party of the Group.
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(s) Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
receivables to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

increase.
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(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as

contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements when material.
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The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period, are discussed

below.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have

been abandoned or sold.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts based on
assessments of the recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such
estimate has been changed. If the financial conditions of the debtors
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make

payments, additional allowances may be required.
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Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes. Significant estimates are
required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as part of
its business transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in

Renminbi and United States dollars.

The following tables detail the Group’s major exposure at the
end of the reporting periods to foreign currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rates at the

end of the reporting periods.
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(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(a) ShEEEEE ()

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FHExT FHT
Denominated in United States dollars L £ T 5HE

Bank and cash balances RIT RN 5% 12 9
Trade receivables B S W RIE - 2,886
Total B 12 2,895

Denominated in Renminbi DAR¥EE
Trade receivables =) A E ] - 12,934

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the

Group's profit for the year that would have arisen if foreign

exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at

the end of the reporting periods had changed at those dates,

assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
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in foreign in profit in foreign in profit

exchange for the year exchange for the year

rates HK$'000 rates HK$'000

201145 20104
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(b) Credit risk

(9]

The carrying amount of the pledged bank deposits, bank and cash
balances, trade and other receivables, and amounts due from
related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk

in relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit history. Amounts

due from related parties are closely monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high

credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the Group's
three largest debtors accounted for 21% (2010: 75%) of trade

receivables as at 31 March 2011.

Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

(b) FERER

(c)

SEAREMBARRKHEEMIRT
TR RITRReESR B RELM
JRE Ui SR TR e Mg B 5 07 R IR ) BR T
BRREEASESBMEENNE
BR=EERR-

AEEBEREHRRERAABSE
EERENEPRHRY EFETY)
EREWRET IR

BEMRTERRBTRELEH
WEERRER RESUTH AR
BRI RBES T B TR
57 o

AEEARZETETRRENEE
Rk RERAEE=AXEHAGR
201143 A31HME S EKKIE21%
(2010F : 75% ) °

REE T ER

AEBHNBRATERERRE LA
HHREBHE TR  UBREERTE
IR 1 AR RS B R R IR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

EZ20114F3H31HIFFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 6. MBRAMREE &
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) "REBELRA (&)
The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is as AEESHBEENIHBAITAT
follows:
Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
1EUT 1225 2E5F 5L E
FTHET FTHET FHET FHT
At 31 March 2011 "201163A31H
Trade payables H 5 e RIE 1,342 - - -
Accruals and other FEFTIE B K H th FE (S k18
payables 2,553 - - -
Amounts due to FEST R E 5 58
related parties 8,249 - - -
Less than Between Between Over
1 year 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1FE AT 1224 2E55F S5 E
FHTT FHIT FHIT FIT
At 31 March 2010 720103 831H
Trade payables B 5 ENRIE 1,811 = = =
Accruals and other FERTIE B R H Ath fE S IR
payables 2,317 - - -
Amounts due to FE{REE 5 58
related parties 53 - - -
Dividend payable RSB B 10,803 = = =
79 BEHERKERA R

2011 £
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(d) Interest rate risk (d)

(e)

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its bank
deposits. These deposits bear interest at variable rates varied with

the then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 March 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/
(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/(decreased) the

Group's profit for the year as follow:

A 2= B
AEBEARH

T RE LR X

BB - ZEFFIRF B EGR A

TR E R TR

M20114538318 @ FEFT A E fth 8 8L
HRFPENERT (AT RBE
#,/ (TH)00EES  AEEHF
EmFlgEm, Cad)mT:

2011 2010
HK$"000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FET F&T

Increase/(decrease) in interest rates FI= £, (T 5)
100 basis points 1001E Z2h - 62
(100) basis points (100) B &2 - (62)

Categories of the Group'’s financial

(e) XEER201153H318H

instruments at 31 March 2011 SRMIAER
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FET FHET
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ B NERFIE (BEREMRESE
and cash equivalents): BY)
Trade receivables B 5 Y RIE 5,643 29,373
Deposits and other receivables & & H M EKGRIE 1,138 699
Amounts due from related parties JiE Lk B 5 5 3R IR 31,418 3,531
Pledged bank deposits EEHIRITER - 1,126
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 8,708 7,590
46,907 42,319
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(e) Categories of the Group’s financial

(e) AEEN2011FE3H31HHK

instruments at 31 March 2011 (Continued) SRITAEER (@)
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FHET T
Financial liabilities: SRIAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost; REEK AN ERMERE:
Trade payables Z 5 FET 5/ I8 1,342 1,811
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R E b E B 2,553 2,317
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ BB 3 75 7R IA 8,249 53
Dividend payable RS AR B - 10,803
12,144 14,984
(f) Fair values fH 2REE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial e MBI KRR A S E S F
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial EERTREBENERAEREARR
position approximate their respective fair values. HAREBEES -

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

20115 2010%F

FERT FHIT

Asset appraisal services income B ENERB A 29,783 27,060
Asset advisory services income EERBMERBBA 22,716 20,197
Corporate services and consultancy income 2 AR K sA s Ug A 3,127 3,613
55,626 50,870

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

20114 2010%F

FET FET

Exchange gain PE A i 34 -
Bank interest income HRITH B UA 21 15
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses & %5 F S i 35 352 466
Other services income E A AR WA - 159
Sub-leasing income AN 2,372 103
Others EAh 88 =
2,867 743




For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 220119F3A31H IFFZ

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

Asset advisory services and

asset appraisal

BEBRRE KEEFG

Corporate services and

consultancy

ERE KA

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer

different products and services. They are managed separately because

AEBEMERSE D FFWT :

Provision of asset appraisal and asset advisory services, including real estate and
fixed asset appraisal, mineral property appraisal, business and intangible asset
valuation, financial instrument and derivative valuation and advisory related to
various types of assets in particular property in the PRC
REEENENEEBRRE REFMEKEFEENG BENG ¥5%
MEVEERE eRIARMTETAGEREHSHREE (LARFENY
EL-0Fi )

Provision of company secretarial services, human resource management and other
administrative services, accounting and tax services, corporate communication
and marketing services, corporate governance, internal control and enterprise risk
management services, management consultancy services
READMERS ANEBEREERAMITBRE &
ARTISHERS CEES AMERE  CERMR

AR ARG - B
EIRIRE & E IR A RS

each business requires different technical requirements and marketing AR R EBEETNRNTMESR L HISH
strategies. EREE o

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as 4 A8 SR N & =T 55 B B 7R SR 2% M EEA P
those described in note 4 to the financial statements. Segment profits AMEER D ER M BRI EA T
or losses do not include corporate income and expenses. Segment Yo D EETBIFERNTIEE N FEIEE
assets do not include corporate assets and amounts due from related ARBE SHEaETBEAREE EN

parties. Segment liabilities do not include corporate liabilities, dividend B REMBEERRIB - DEIEREEE

payable and amounts due to related parties. Segment non-current

BREARDE BEERE-

assets do not include corporate property, plant and equipment.

The Group accounts for intersegment revenue and transfers as if the RNEFE RS FTHEL S I s L iEE A

revenue or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market prices.

B BN = an sk



For the year ended 31 March 2011

B ZE2011E3H31HIFFEE

(a) Information about reportable segment profit

(a) FEAME DA EF NG -

or loss, assets and liabilities: EERBENER:
Asset advisory Corporate
services and services and
asset appraisal consultancy Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBRBRBR CEBER
BETME &l st
FHx FEx FEx
Year ended 31 March 2011 HZ2011F3831A L FE
Revenue from external REIREF W
customers 52,499 3,127 55,626
Intersegment revenue 7 Eb - 1,200 1,200
Segment profit 5 80 A 30,758 1,178 31,936
Interest revenue PSR g 21 - 21
Depreciation e 198 59 257
Staff costs BTRA 10,969 2,148 13,117
Income tax expense Fig iR 3,206 - 3,206
Additions to segment REDBIERBEE
non-current assets 153 836 989
As at 31 March 2011 ®2011%3H31A8
Segment assets DEHEE 14,390 1,217 15,607
Segment liabilities DB E 6,838 849 7,687
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(a) Information about reportable segment profit

(b)

(a) FEAME 7 EWEANHEE

or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued): EEREBENER (&)
Asset advisory Corporate
services and services and
asset appraisal consultancy Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBERRSE R RERE &
AR i it
FH&T FHET FHT
Year ended 31 March 2010 #EHZ2010F3A31ALLEE
Revenue from external REIRE P Wz
customers 47,257 3,613 50,870
Intersegment revenue 7> 0 Wi 145 - 145
Segment profit PN il 27,253 3,372 30,625
Interest revenue 2 Uz 15 = 15
Interest expense FERX 1 - 1
Depreciation e 260 2 262
Staff costs BTHRA 8,897 48 8,945
Income tax expense FrieBFAx% 3,808 - 3,808
Additions to segment non- REDDIERBDEE
current assets 35 4 39
As at 31 March 2010 #201063A31H
Segment assets DEMEE 35,651 2,570 38,221
Segment liabilities DEEE 6,333 214 6,547

Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &2 B RS

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B EEREENHER:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FET FHET

Revenue W &

Total revenue of reportable segments & 9 2 UK S 42 %8 56,826 51,015
Elimination of intersegment revenue 5 BD i M ek ) 8 (1,200) (145)

Consolidated revenue

55,626

50,870
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 ABUER BRI

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B EEREENHEE
(Continued): (&) :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FE&xT FHIT
Profit or loss AR BB
Total profit of reportable segments o s B 31,936 30,625
Elimination of intersegment profits 53 2B i ) 8 (1,200) (249)
Unallocated amounts PN [Pk
Corporate expenses AEAX (5.309) (712)
Consolidated profit for the year FELRE &= 25,427 29,664
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 2010%F
FET FHT
Segment assets PTHWEE
Total assets of reportable segments HREDEEEMRE 15,607 38,221
Unallocated amounts: ROBEEE:
Corporate assets NAElBE 5,874 1,413
Amounts due from related parties JfE Uk B 58 5 3R IR 31,418 3,531
Consolidated total assets meBERE 52,899 43,165
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 201o¢
Segment liabilities PHAE
Total liabilities of reportable segments ~ F& D B &A% 7,687 6,547
Unallocated amounts: VAl okl
Dividend payable RS AR B - 10,803
Corporate liabilities NEIBE 622 463
Amounts due to related parties JE 1~ BA 3 5 R IA 8,249 53
Consolidated total liabilities e AaERRE 16,558 17,866
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 AU - 8RN

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B EEREENHEE
(Continued): (&) :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FExT FHT
Depreciation e
Total depreciation of reportable mEDHITELTE
segments 257 262
Unallocated amounts AN ek}
Depreciation of corporate assets NEIEENE 16 =
Consolidated depreciation RETE 273 262
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FET FHET
Staff costs BIRA
Total staff costs of reportable segments ¥4 5 & 8 T A 4858 13,117 8,945
Unallocated amounts PaN ek}
Corporate staff costs AR B IR 6,209 2,542
Consolidated staff costs A B I 19,326 11,487
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(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment

(b) &7 ABUER BRI

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities B EEREENHEE
(Continued): (&) :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FBT T
Additions to non-current assets REFRRBEE
Total additions to non-current assets of & 9 3R E IER BN E E L (E
reportable segments 989 39
Unallocated amounts RO EEE
Additions to corporate RERAIERBEE
non-current assets 102 -
Consolidated additions to RERBIERDEE
non-current assets 1,091 39
(c) Geographical information: (c) HEEHR:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FHERT FET
Revenue W &=
Hong Kong B 42,166 41,822
The PRC excluding Hong Kong FE(TNRERE) 12,936 9,048
Others Hib 524 =
Consolidated total AR 55,626 50,870
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(9]

(d)

Geographical information (Continued):

(c) HEER (&) :

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FHET FHT

Non-current assets kRBEE
Hong Kong B 1,224 406
The PRC excluding Hong Kong FE(TRERE) - =
Consolidated total AR 1,224 406

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on

the locations of the customers.

Revenue from major customers:

An analysis of revenue from major customers which account for

EE25ERE R WS AR P AT

by 2 5 B o

(d) REXEEFHWES:
(GBI 210%H A L EER

over 10 percent or more of the Group's revenue is as follows: PlamEAT -
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 2010%F
FERT FHTT
Asset advisory services and EEBBEREREEFML
asset appraisal
Customer a EPFa 14,141 17,607
Customer b EFb 8,598 N/A
Corporate services and consultancy R K EH N/A N/A
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 2010%F
FHET FHET

Bank overdraft interest

RITBEHE
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2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
F#&xT FHT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BVERTR 18 — BB F 1S
Provision for the year FERE 3,206 3,820
Overprovision in prior years AAEFERERE - (12)
3,206 3,808
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2010: ANEERBEEHZ2011F38318 ILFE
16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 Y {d 51 FE SR B v ) - $216.5% (20104
March 2011. 16.5% ) B9 Ht R EH e BB NS A
Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the EL At 3 75 P& ER T A B0 B TE 2 H o AR &=
rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, B EMERRERHE  RIEEHIRTT
based on existing legislation, interpretation and practices in respect E=h - ZEREAGE
thereof.
The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product TS 81 b =2 B Gh BR 8 A s A1 SR LA B 7S )
of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as SEBENENEERAT
follows:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FHExT FHT
Profit before tax B 5 Al A 28,633 33,472
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BEENSHB =X 16.5% 16.5%
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REANESH R EGTENTIE 4,724 5,523
Tax effect of income that is not taxable AR AR T %5 2 (1,909) (1,953)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible AT F1 5 f X MO TR 75 2 & 82 185
Tax effect of temporary differences not TEREREZZNBS
recognised (71) 33
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBERE - (12)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised R K &) F 1 1B 5 18 MO TR 75 52 22 357 32
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries  Bff /& 2 ] Bt R 7 [|] #) 74 75 57 28 23 =

Income tax expense FiS i 2 3,206 3,808
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B E20119F3H31HILFE

12. FE & F
REBFERFNENR, (GFA)UTE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following: HEHSIAT :
2011 2010
HK$000 HK$'000
20115 2010%F
FERT FHET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% S5 A B < 250 252
Allowance for trade receivables (note 19) B 5 rWskTa s (MsE19) 945 1,090

Reversal of allowance for trade receivables & 5 FEM FUE B 57 B (Fi5E19)

(note 19) (1,254) -
Bad debt written off SRR EH 899 15
Depreciation e 273 262
Directors’ emoluments (note 13(a)) BEHM (H:E13@))

As directors 5= - -

For management =3z 2,682 1,590

2,682 1,590
Exchange (gain)/losses, net BN (Wa) Bi8F58 (34) 3
Allowance for amounts due from FE U B A R FIE B S

related companies - 102
Operating lease charges CERESH

Land and buildings T RAEF 3,348 1,389

Photocopier machines S ENH 28 23

3,376 1,412

Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B T 7 (B 45 = E )
Salaries, bonus and allowances & JEAL ROERL 18,810 11,260
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RREFGHEI LR 516 227
19,326 11,487

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
Annual Report 2011

90
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B 22011F3A31HILFE
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EE=HM
The emoluments of each of the Company’s director were as ARRSESHMAOT :
follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme  Discretionary
Name of director Fees inkind  contributions bonus Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#e RER RRRA
BEEHSZ kA ELEE R BERA st
FHT FHT FHET FHT FHET
Year ended BZ2011%538318
31 March 2011 LEE
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong RN G4 - 2,507 12 162 2,681
Mr. Leung Siu Hong RIKER S - 1 - - 1
Independent non- BERITES
executive directors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong R B LEAE
Yan, Peter - - - - -
Mr. Wan Kam To FIRBLELE - - - - -
Mr. Wu Chi Keung AR - - - - -
Total st - 2,508 12 162 2,682
Year ended EHZ201063A31H
31 March 2010 LFE
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong RBXEE - 1,153 12 350 1,515
Mr. Leung Siu Hong RIS - - - - 75 75
Independent non- B FMTES
executive directors
Mr. Au-Yang Cheong BimRBEAE
Yan, Peter = = = = =
Mr. Wan Kam To FIRELE = = = - -
Mr. Wu Chi Keung AR A = = = - -
Total fEt - 1,153 12 425 1,590
Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under which Mk T FEE AN - AN S AT
a director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the BRAE EWE R = R E (T (A E

year. B & B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

B 22011F3H31H I FE
13. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE B EERIBBEEHFALINE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONTINUED) M (=)
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments (b) EEESEFH AL
The five highest paid individuals in the Group included 1 director HZ2011F3A31BILEFE K&
(2010: 1 director) for the year ended 31 March 2011. Details MAEERTALTERIRES
of those emoluments have been disclosed above. Details of the (2010F - 1BER) - BEAFTMFIE
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals for the year REXHEBR - RAFE BT &x=m5
are set out below: ATEFH MBI T :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FERT FHIT
Salaries and allowances e RoERL 3,072 2,292
Discretionary bonus BIBIEAT 336 585
Retirement benefit scheme RKRE T EH B3R
contributions 48 48
3,456 2,925
The emoluments fell within the following bands: J&B 7 T 51 8 [ A 357 B -
Number of individuals
A
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FET FHIT
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z T2 1,000,0007% 7T 2 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,0007% 7T 2 1
(c) No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the directors () RAEFE AREEWERAEMESK
or the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon B AT EB - LAER BN
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the B Sk N BR AN 6% [ 12 1Y SR ) S B BB A
year. 8o
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 09

Annual Report 2011
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The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of contribution
of HK$1,000 per employee and vest fully with employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Eligible employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the central
pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations
of all existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the central pension

scheme is to meet the required contributions under the scheme.

AEBRBESRGERABSFTEED A
HEREEREBRERER RGN ATES
e ([RERE]) AEEARES
¥ RITES%MBESTEELHER
e RHERERAETEREE1,000% 7T
RIASRTE & 5T EIVE B g - B ER
EEE-

AEERTPERIOMBELRSERES
ASHLTT TR & I 0 R SRR IR & 5B
B-ZEMBRARAREREAHFERT
AETAD AP RRARSEEEL

K DAS A A B AR R AR ) © .75 T R
AAEZEMBEARIMARE RBRERNK
BENRAKENET ZSWEBARRTD
REKREF BN —BERREZEIE
PR K

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

20115 20104

FHET FHT

Interim (note) fREF (BEE) 14,400 13,305

Note: Interim dividends of HK$1.5641 and HK$1.8769 per ordinary
share of Greater China Appraisal Limited, totalling approximately
HK$2,502,500 and HK$3,003,000 respectively, were declared and
distributed to its then shareholders for the year ended 31 March
2010. Included in the dividends were approximately HK$859,000
and HK$1,031,000 paid to Asset-Plus Global Limited, a company
comprising the Group, which was also one of the shareholders of
Greater China Appraisal Limited at the date of distribution. Upon the
receipt of dividend, Asset-Plus Global Limited distributed the same
as interim dividend to its then shareholder.

Bzt : B E2010F3A31B LEF & EELT
BEERARFREBIR.56417ET R
1ww%ﬁm$%%aﬁm&ﬁﬁ
FHERRR - 559 51492,502,500
%m&&%&m%bw%%k%a
#E 37 15 T Asset-Plus Global Limited#Y
859,000/ 7T & 1,031 oooi?éﬁﬁﬁ%‘k

CRAFRERAEENR
Eyéﬁi%ﬂéﬁﬁﬁA RIS /fJiEI,HEE!’\JHx

R 2 — o RUENRZ IR B 7% - Asset-Plus
Global Limited[ml H & kYRR 3R 5 Ik [F]
EoBEERTHRE
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In addition to the above, interim dividends of HK$3,900,000 and
HK$5,500,000 per ordinary share of Asset-Plus Global Limited,
totalling approximately HK$7,800,000 and HK$11,000,000
respectively, were declared and distributed to its then shareholder
for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2011. Interim dividends of
HK$2.125 per ordinary share of Greater China Appraisal Limited,
totalling approximately HK$3,400,000 was declared and distributed
to its then shareholder for the year ended 31 March 2011.

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2011 is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for each of
the reporting period and the assumption that 375,000,000 shares of
the Company are in issue and issuable, comprising 1,000 shares in issue
as at the date of the Prospectus and 374,999,000 shares to be issued
pursuant to the capitalisation issue as more fully described in the section
headed “Written resolutions of the sole Shareholder” in Appendix VI to
the Prospectus, as if the entire shares were outstanding throughout the

year.

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did not

have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the year.

B LA & P st 35 51 B Z220104F 22011
F3A31H ILFE  Asset-Plus Global
Limited%& A% & i A%3,900,0007% JT &
5,500,000/ 7T & R BAAR B B R & 5 Ik

THERRR &5 5 547,800,000
# 7T %.11,000,000% 7T ° 8 2201143
A3NBIEFE ZETEERAAER
TiEAR2.1258 TR IR EE IR RS
IR T H & R R - A 7T 493,400,00078

JT ©

HE20106F R20114F3A31H EFE®
AAPBEREABESRERRF TR
BERSHORNAREE ARIGGEE &
MAE W REZEBITRABITARAG
375,000,000 ik 17 - B2 R HBREE B
HBE#TH1,000R kG5O RBELBRE
RS NFh (- RENEEARAZEE]
— BRI R B AL B AT S T RATH
374,999,0000% A& 17+ M 4AFA A A {7 70 B {1
FENEETe

RRAR BN F AL EEEER S S8
B MY EESNSREERA -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
Bl 2201193531 HIFFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BERRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Office
Improvements equipment equipment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEREIRE BRREE N st
FHET FHET FHET FAT
Cost A
At 1 April 2009 20094718 399 221 1,090 1,710
Additions NE - - 39 39
At 31 March 2010 and M201063HA318 Kk

1 April 2010 2010F4H1H 399 221 1,129 1,749
Additions NE 379 119 593 1,091
At 31 March 2011 7201143 H31H 778 340 1,722 2,840
Accumulated depreciation =~ R ITE
At 1 April 2009 H2009F4H1H 295 190 596 1,081
Charge for the year FEFE 79 16 167 262
At 31 March 2010 and M2010F3A318 &

1 April 2010 2010F4H1H 374 206 763 1,343
Charge for the year FEFE 42 17 214 273
At 31 March 2011 H201143H31H 416 223 977 1,616
Carrying amount RREE
At 31 March 2011 M201143H31H 362 17 745 1,224
At 31 March 2010 201083 H31H 25 15 366 406

BEHERKERAR

95

2011 £ 3R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B %5 ¥R AR Y RE

For the year ended 31 March 2011

B 22011F3H31H I FE
18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R E RN EIRVRE
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FET FHET
Unlisted investment REMKRE
Share of net assets less impairment ARBERSIEEETE - =
Details of the Group's associate at 31 March 2011 are as follows: MR201MF3A3 1B AREBMEE NGB
m
Percentage of
ownership
Place of interest/
incorporation/ voting power/
Name registration Issued and paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
LA RS
R/
% EMRL BREYH BROIRBREX AMERFEILE EEER
bt REEEHEERMN PRC Registered capital of US$60,000 50% Inactive
ARRA* FE & 4860,000% 7T Emex
*  The business licence has been suspended since 18 July 2008. * B ARE2008FE7AISHEER o
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associate REEETEBBRERRE Y NEFBHLE N
according to their management financial statements is set out below: AN AR EEHY T :
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FTRET FET
Total assets BEBE 81 78
Total liabilities BERE (871) (835)
Net liabilities BfEFE (790) (757)
Group's share of associate’s net liabilities REFED (LB E QR A EFE (395) (378)
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 06
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
Bl 2201193531 HIFFE

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

18. REtE A RINIRE (&)

If

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

20114 20104

FET FHT

Total revenue Was 4858 - =
Total loss for the year FEBBERRE (1) (14)

Group's share of associate’s loss for the year A& 7 (HEE & N R FEE 1B

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group'’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. During
the year, the credit terms generally range from 14 to 30 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The Group’s aging analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice date,

and net of allowance, is as follows:

19.

B % EBWRIE

AEBEEFNRXZGHREEREET

X-REFEAR EEH RN F148 2308
NS o ANER B B 4 1) AR R[] B R R OB A

FBREZE BEFEEHMEMNBNGR-

AR B 1B B R0 B 5 PRI HAOR (R
B8) R DT -

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

20114 20104

FEx THT

0 to 30 days 0-30H 2,719 4,292
31 to 90 days 31-90H 1,631 8,811
91 to 180 days 91-180H 868 2,773
Over 180 days HBiE180H 425 13,497
5,643 29,373

97
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B E20119F3H31HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables for the year is set out

below:

19. E 5 EINFEIE (8)

RERNE S B FIERFHHERES W
T

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

20115 20104

FERT FHIT

Balance at the beginning of the year FREER 1,625 535

Allowance for the year FERE 945 1,090

Reversal upon settlement for the year FEAEERL (344) =
Reversal upon write off of receivables G [ WK TE L 85 18 B [B]

for the year (910) -

Balance at the end of the year FARER 1,316 1,625

As at 31 March 2011, trade receivables of approximately HK$4,446,000

(2010: HK$25,598,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to

a number of independent customers to whom there is no recent history

of default. An aging analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

M2011463A318 B S EKRKIELY
4,446,0005% 7T (20104 : 25,598,000/
T)BEHHERRE - ZFHREEE TR
MR CHENBEIREF AR 258
5 EBRIERNRE DA :

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FHET FHT
Up to 3 months 3E AN 3,178 10,752
3 to 6 months 3%26{E A 973 1,363
Over 6 months A B61E A 295 13,483
4,446 25,598
GreaterChina Professional Services Limited 08
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

EZE2011F3A31HIFFE
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. B 5 EUWRIE ()
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables are denominated REBE ZEYGRIEREE N N5 E% 5
in the following currencies: B:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FExT FHIT
United States dollars EYiv - 2,886
Hong Kong dollars BT 5,087 13,553
Renminbi AR 556 12,934
Total @t 5,643 29,373
20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 20. B BB 15 FIE
2011 2010
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 2010%F
B 5 FEx FAT
Due from ultimate parent JE W A 45 B R B 5RIE €) - 391
Due from related companies under & U 52 128 5 1% B8 $E [R] 22 ) 9 B8 122
common control of AR
the Controlling Shareholder (@) 31,392 27
Due from a non-controlling JRE U 22 AR AR 3R 3R 3B
shareholder (b) & () - 469
Due from related companies JE 5 52 I 12 R R B 42 1) A
under control of non-controlling B X RIFKIA
shareholders (b) & () 26 26
Due from directors FE W E E 5018 (d) - 2,618
Total FEE 31,418 3,531
99 BEEEHEREBRA A
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

(@) Details of the amount due from ultimate parent and related
companies under common control of the Controlling Shareholder
disclosed pursuant to section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance are as follows:

JE U B 48 B R A B 52 AR A% R BR K [R)
EHNEERARREFBRESS
NEEME161BIEIEEN T :

Group
AEH
Maximum
Balance at Balance at amount
Name of director having 31 March 31 March outstanding
Name beneficial interest 2011 2010  during the year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2011%3831H 201063 A31H EF=AUES
=L BREEREENESESR M BR Witk WENESLE
FHET FET FET
Ultimate parent
BRABAT
GC Holdings Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong - 391 391
BRI A
Related companies under
common control of
the Controlling Shareholder
TERRRABZESNEEL R
GCA Professional Services Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and 31,175 27 31,182
Group Limited Mr. Leung Siu Hong
BEEXERGEEGRAA BRI A RRICREE
Greater China Capital Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and 217 - 1,020
Mr. Leung Siu Hong
EEERGRAF] BRI A R RICEEE
31,392 27

The amounts due from ultimate parent and related companies
under common control of the Controlling Shareholder are

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.

FEM BR AR B X B Jo PR R CR AR
EHIHRE R RIS EER 28
N S [E] 7 48 SRR



For the year ended 31 March 2011

B 22011F3A31HILFE
(b)  The amounts due from a non-controlling shareholder and related (b) U 478 A% A% 3R Ke 52 FE 432 S PR BR 4
companies under control of non-controlling shareholders are FIREEE A RFIBRERR 28 K&
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. MEEER -
() The non-controlling shareholders have significant influence in the (© FEEBRBEEREARRBEEATES -
Company.
(d) Details of the amounts due from directors disclosed pursuant to (d) ERESFEFBREEERRE
section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as BIE161BIEHEN T ¢
follows:
Group
rEH
Maximum
Balance at Balance at amount
Name of director having 31 March 31 March outstanding
Name beneficial interest 2011 2010  during the year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEEK
A2011438318 72010638318 B B S
"E BEBEZRERNESESR K 48R Ky 48R k-]
FHT FHIT FHIT
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong Unsecured, no fixed repayment - 2,427 2,427
HEENEE terms and interest-free
EIE EETERAKE S
Mr. Leung Siu Hong Unsecured, no fixed repayment - 191 191
BRICER L E terms and interest-free
EER EETERARE R
- 2,618
(e) The amounts due from related parties have been settled after the (e) MEUWRERRAEDNIREHRBIEE-

reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B E20119F3H31HILFE

GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
Annual Report 2011

21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND

CASH BALANCES

The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to
banks to secure banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in
note 25 to the financial statements. The deposits are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and arranged at fixed interest rate of 0.07% per
annum as at 31 March 2010 and therefore expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The pledged bank deposits were released by
bank upon the cancellation of banking facilities by the Group as at 31
March 2011.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

21.

CERRTERRBITRER

HANEA TS R R M s E25 T H  AEEMEE
RROTFRERANEEMERBTEE
BEMIRITERNFER - ZEERABT
FT{E - W 201063 A31 A 2 B 7 F F| F
0.07E:tE ASBEEAMEEHANREE
FERERRR2011F3A318 E LR
TERCRAEBEUERITEEREERKE
RITERRR -

AEBENERES LR EEYWT

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

20114 20104

FBT T

Cash on hand FHEBE® 17 4

Cash at bank RITIME 8,691 7,586
Cash and cash equivalents in the RizeRanEaERNRE &

consolidated statement of cash flows REEEY 8,708 7,590

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the

following currencies:

AEENR S RASEEYATIIEET
&:

2011 2010

HK$'000 HK$'000

201145 20104

FHERT FHIT

Australian dollars SBIT 1 =
Renminbi AR 187 =
United States dollars = 12 9
Hong Kong dollars BT 8,508 7,581
8,708 7,590

Conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of

Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011

B 220119F3A31HIFFZF
22. TRADE PAYABLES 22. EZ RN FIA
The aging analysis of the Group's trade payables is as follows: REBEE FEMNFENRRTHOT
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20114 20104
FET FAT
0 - 90 days 0-90H 804 1,339
91 - 180 days 91-180H 399 -
181 — 365 days 181-365H - 46
Over 365 days HiAE365H 139 426
1,342 1,811
The Group's trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. REBWE S ENFKRIELUETEE -
23. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 23. FE{STRAE K IR
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104
FExT FHT
Due to a director e EFRIE 266 5
Due to a non-controlling shareholder FE A FE R AR IR BR RIR 948 48
Due to a related company under JE {F 52 422 AR AR 3R L [R] 428 il A9
common control of the B8 N RIFRIE
Controlling Shareholder 7,035 -
8,249 53
The amounts due to a director, a non-controlling shareholder and a FEREE - JEIERRAR R R 2 PR AR AR SR 2L [A)
related company under common control of the Controlling Shareholder ZHIMBEQ RN RIEAEERM 28K
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BRERER-
The amounts due to related parties were settled after the reporting FEEE S RIER RS BB RE-
period.
The amount due to a subsidiary by the Company is unsecured, RATERNWB AR 2 RIBEREERR - &
interest-free and repayable on demand. BERBRENER -
103 BEHERKERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial
statements as the tax effect of temporary differences is immaterial to

the Group.

The Group has unused tax losses of approximately HK$2,897,000
(2010: HK$729,000) at 31 March 2011 available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All

tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in subsidiaries

and associate are insignificant.

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had banking facilities in respect of
bank overdraft and credit card facilities of approximately HK$ 1.8 million
and HK$0.1 million respectively. The Group’s banking facilities were

secured by the following:

(i) Joint personal guarantee of a director of the Company, Mr. Ip
Kwok Kwong, and a non-controlling shareholder, Mr. Cheng Kam

Por; and

(i)  Pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$1 million of the
Group.

No provision for the utilised banking facilities has been made in the

financial statements as the amounts are immaterial to the Group.

The banking facilities had been cancelled and the securities for the

facilities were released as at 31 March 2011.

MREREERNRBZENAKREMS
B RE R EHER A E AR T
HEHR A

ANEBP201143 A31 8 Al K 85 R 0%
M EY AR B AR B IE BT 1R 4) /2,897,00078 7T
(20104 : 729,000 7T ) ° £ 7 7K 2K i3 )
HORAY A B FEOAIME - B AR B % F A IR B
BRRECHRIELE -FAHBEERBIE
PR EA A% o

BRI P/ % ) R Bt R A A i T 2 AR Y
ERMEEBMTEE-

201063318 AEBBERARITEX
RieAREEBENRITEEEES RN
#31,800,0007% 7T 2100,0007% 7T © A8 &
BIRTTIEERE B T 5 FEEER

() ARREFEENEERIFZERK
REERREENBSEALZR: K

(i) AEEEEMRITFERE1,000,000

BT

BENBRRACBBRTEERET
REE RARZSRERNAREMmE
BMTRE-

MR2011F3A318  RITEEBECIUS
N E AR M IR B AR R



For the year ended 31 March 2011

B 2201193 H31H1FFE
Company
AR
Number of
shares Amount
HK$
RDEE x|
BT
Authorised EE
38,000,000 ordinary shares of 38,000,0000% & i% Ml &
HK$0.01 each 0.0178 T A E AR 38,000,000 380,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each 1BXEE0.017 T iy X i@ A% 1 0.01

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 3 December 2010. At the date of incorporation, the
authorised share capital of the Company was HK$380,000 divided
into 38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. Following its incorporation,
one share was allotted and issued to a subscriber, and was transferred
to Brilliant One Holdings Limited on 3 December 2010. Details of
movement of share capital of the Company subsequent to the date of

incorporation are set out in Appendix VI to the Prospectus.

RAFMN2010F12A3BIRERESES
RAERAEHSAMK LA —RER
RBRAT - REMK BE - AR EDE
TE B& 7K 7%380,0007% 7T - 4 338,000,000
& G AR EE0.01 B T B AR 19 o H s Ak 32
& IRROEREEREITT —BREA
W 72010412 A3H 8 3% TBrilliant One
Holdings Limited ° 28 Bl i sk A 32 B HA
BEORAEBFBHNBRERMEES



For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

For the purpose of these financial statements, the share capital as at
1 April 2009 presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity represented the aggregate nominal value of the issued and paid
up share capital of Greater China Appraisal Limited, Greater China
Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited, GCA Holdings Limited and
Asset-Plus Global Limited attributable to the Controlling Shareholder
of the Company, Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong. On 25 January 2010, the
entire share capital of Greater China Appraisal Limited, Greater
China Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited, and GCA Holdings
Limited were transferred to GCA Professional Services Group Limited,
a company under the control of the Controlling Shareholder, and on
29 March 2010, the entire share capital of Asset-Plus Global Limited
was transferred to GCA Professional Services Group Limited. The share
capital was therefore increased by the nominal value of the issued and
paid up share capital of Greater China Appraisal Limited, Greater China
Corporate Consultancy & Services Limited, GCA Holdings Limited and
Asset-Plus Global Limited originally attributable to the non-controlling
shareholders immediately after the acquisition. On 23 February 2010,
GCA Professional Services Group Limited acquired the entire equity in
Linkson Investment Limited. The share capital was further increased
by the nominal value of the issued and paid up capital of Linkson
Investment Limited. The share capital presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010 and 2011
represented the entire nominal value of the issued and paid up share
capital of Greater China Appraisal Limited, Greater China Corporate
Consultancy & Services Limited, GCA Holdings Limited, Asset-Plus

Global Limited and Linkson Investment Limited.

ZEFMEHERM = - R2009F4 718
FEEREERZTIHRAIEARR AR
PRERER R A EETEBR AR
EEPERBARDR EEEE (ER)
B R A7 K Asset-Plus Global Limited &, 2%
17 RS R B AN #) 4 TE {8 - 70201045F1 525
B OZZENEERAR EECERBE
PRAR FoRESE () BRAR2E
MR AN BE R 48 AR AR AR SR Il By X Bl I
HERBEBEER QA MMR201063H
290 ' Asset-Plus Global Limited#) % 2%
RERGZEZXRBEBAR LA - i
b RN ERER B R ARTEM A2
BARIFERRRRAREEEETEER D
A EREPERBER AR EEERE (5
%) B R A &) & Asset-Plus Global Limited&Y
BEBITRBRBANEE 72010424
238 EEFZERBEERRLFWERS
FIREBR A A2 AR  ARANHE — 2538
m BESEREHRIREARARBET
KR I AN Y E B © 7220104F }22011453
A31BRERE BB & 25 MR AT
BEETERR AR RECERBERAD
Al EFELEE (1FER) BRAF] - Asset-Plus
Global Limited 255 R EBR AR C #1T
R R AR & ZBE A ©



For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

The Group manages its capital to maintain an optimal capital structure
so as to maximise the return to its shareholders, to protect the interests
of its shareholders, safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to be able to service its debts when they are due. In order
to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend payment, obtain various forms of debt/
equity financing available in the market at an appropriate cost when

necessary.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which comprises
mostly the loans from shareholders and with immaterial borrowings
as disclosed in note 25, cash and cash equivalents and shareholders’

equity.

Management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis. As a
part of this review, management considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.

AEBEBHEER NERBRE NG
B REBRRMESEARR  RELRR
R ERARE T SELLE AR
RETS B BB EIE F0R - BT SED|E
BERES AEBAERABERNKRES
B REFRERUNAERABMERES
BRANER,RARHE -

AEBEMEANEBERES (KD /KR
ERERHE2SS BB IFEAEER) R
SRR EEYIARBRRERAER -

EREERFENEANERE -ZHEREE
EBEZRERNKAREREARKHH R
REBAE BRI IS - FTIREEIT A R 3
THEHIERREEY FEAERER
ZN Y

BB N A TR

i

RE

J i

M



For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Company

(a) &=%HE

AEENRBERREZPINEGS
REEBHRANZT -

(b) KA

Accumulated losses

HK$'000
A5t E8
FAT
Loss for the period and at 31 March 2011 AHAR R A201146F3A318 2 B8 (1)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REMHEREDN
(i) Exchange reserve ) [FES
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange P X R B IR R E IR S 7 B
differences arising from the translation of the financial BWMREENMAIINEZSR
statements of foreign operations as well as the effective LA % 1 52 55 SN 2E 7 1 8 0%
portion of any foreign exchange differences arising from BEAMEMINEZEZNE R
hedges of the net investment in these foreign operations. BB o 5% ik 18 AR 1R B %5 5K B
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting T T E B st IR BRI
policies set out in note 4(e)(iii) to the financial statements.
(i) Capital reserve (i) B #

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the original
investment costs in the Greater China Appraisal Limited and
GCA Holdings Limited incurred by the Group, and (ii) the
non-controlling interests in the retained profits of Greater
China Appraisal Limited and GCA Holdings Limited acquired
by GCA Professional Services Group Limited upon a group

reorganisation in 2010.

REENEAREROEEE
RIEETEGRAFREES
B (8R) BRABEERRE
B RONVEZEZZERB S
EAHRARMN2010F£EEA
B EEETERRARRE
EEBE (FR) BRAFNRE
St ) B9 S92 ) 1 A 2k o



For the year ended 31 March 2011

B ZE2011F3431H 1IFFE
(a) Acquisition of subsidiary (@) WEEME QA
The Group had a business combination for the year ended 31 AEBREE2010F3A31BIEFE
March 2010. BE-HEBAG-
On 23 February 2010, the Group obtained control of Linkson 20102238 REEFEBIAR
Investment Limited by acquiring its entire issued share capital at REBETHBEEHRKREER L A
a cash consideration of HK$2. Linkson Investment Limited was 2P E BT AR AN T HRAS B i A
engaged in sub-leasing of office during the years ended 31 March EHREEERAFNEE2010F &
2010 and 2011. The acquisition is for the purpose of securing the 2011 FE3A3TBLEFERERAESD
tenancy agreement of the office of the Group. THES - WHESIER B RIS AE
ERAEHNHE -
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Linkson REWHEBE - FTIEERERIRER
Investment Limited acquired as at their respective dates of RARMWAHNEERBBENAR
acquisition is as follows: BEMNT:
HK$'000
FHIT
Fair value of net assets acquired: FrkEEEFENAREE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR RIA - e R H b FEY R IA 466
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B K H b & 518 (466)
Satisfied by: AR5 B E
Cash Re -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEIREARIRE L F88

Cash consideration paid BENRENRE =




For the year ended 31 March 2011

BE20119F3A31 Hi1L FE
(a) Acquisition of subsidiary (Continued) (@) WEEHWE AR (&)

The contributions of turnover and profit to the Group since the BEREERIEEERARBHERE
date of acquisition of Linkson Investment Limited up to 31 March Z2010F3A318 1L AL E &
2010 are as follows: B MEERIAT

HK$'000

FET
Turnover contribution EEBER =
Loss contribution BEER (19)
If the acquisition of Linkson Investment Limited had been MEHREERRARNKESIED
completed on 1 April 2009, total Group turnover and profit for 200954 A1 H B - Al A & B R
the year ended 31 March 2010 would have been as follows: HE2010F3A31HILFEMEETE
Kom A 4RFEAT :
HK$:000
FET
Turnover = 51,179
Profit gl 31,670
The pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and HEEREHRZE T —FEREM
is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results of HEAREARARNKESIERD
operations of the Group that actually would have been achieved MR2009F 4R 1B Bk - AEENE
had the acquisition of Linkson Investment Limited been completed REEBRCEEE  BRAEZER
on 1 April 2009, nor is intended to be a projection of future IR VE R R PR ZE AR B HE R o
results.
(b) Major non-cash transaction (b) EXFBRERS

During the year, interim dividend payable of HK$11,000,000 F A Asset-Plus Global LimitedfiE
declared by Asset-Plus Global Limited was set off against the K 2 FEfT AR BB S11,000,0008 T2
amount due from a related company under common control of 48 B WU AR AR SR AL R I T 2 —

the Controlling Shareholder. MRAER R ZFIE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
Bl 2201193531 HIFFE

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group did not have any significant capital

commitments.

31. LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as

29. HREBE
MR2011F38318 AEB I EEMEKR
HARBEE-
30. EARKIE
M2011F3A31H  AEBEWEEFREKR
31. HEHRE

M20115E3A318 - RE BT o] BdE
EHE T R RS K E R IB R

follows: T:
2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
201145 2010%F
FHET FHIT
Within one year —FR" 3,613 5,125
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FEZERFT (BREERMF) 2,758 5,408
6,371 10,533

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its offices and photocopier machines. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years and rentals are fixed over the

lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
B 2201193 H31H1FFE

BR B 75 SR 3R B A EL A 30 7 R BR D A 5 2
5 RAESRIN REBERFAERREL BN

following transactions with its related parties during the year: TR5:

In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements, the Group had the

Name of directors/close family members/
non-controlling shareholders having

beneficial interest 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBERENES HZRE FERRRESR 20114 20104
TER FET
Asset appraisal services income from
related companies
REBERANEETHRA
— Path Immigration Consultant Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and Mr. Cheng Kam Por 24 -
—HEBREMERAR RS RSHRLE
— Greater China Capital Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Leung Siu Hong,
Mr. Cheng Kam Por and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung 197 =
—EEEARFRAA BEEEE RREALE BRREE
REZBEE
- KP Cheng & Co,, Mr. Cheng Kam Por
Certified Public Accountants 30 =
— SRR & 5T A =I5 BRI 55 &
Allowance for amounts due from
related companies
JRE Uit il 8 X R FRIE B
-BEMNTRECEBRFER QA Mr. Wong Chi Keung - 9%
WZREE
— GC International Holding Limited Mr. Wong Chi Keung - 6
—REFREEFR A BZMEE
Corporate services and consultancy income
from related companies
KEEQTNEERE RAABA
— Greater China Capital Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Leung Siu Hong,
Mr. Cheng Kam Por and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung 600 =
—EEERFRAA RS - IR A BRI E
KEZRELE
— GCA Professional Services Group Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, Mr. Leung Siu Hong,
Mr. Cheng Kam Por and
Mr. Wong Chi Keung 360 =
—EEEERBEEERAF R SEA - RBIRERE  BIRREE
REZ®BEE
— Prosperity Management Services Limited Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited 339 -

—REERRBEERLA

FEREERARAR
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Name of directors/close family members/
non-controlling shareholders having

beneficial interest 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBERENES HZRE  FERRFLES 20114 20104
FET FHT
Rent income from related companies
KEMEAFNES KA
- KP Cheng & Co., Certified Public Mr. Cheng Kam Por
Accountants 1,203 —
— BSRR G SR E RS EDERIR S A
— Prosperity Management Services Limited Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited 358 -
-~ REEERBARLA RERBEBFEERAT
Purchase of Property, plant and
equipment from a related company
M—XKAELRBEEYE BKEKEE
— Prosperity Management Services Limited Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited 43 -
— REBERKAERLA FEREREERAA
Rent paid to related companies
ENEEARES
- Mega Treasure (HK) Limited Mr. Cheng Kam Por 560 1,335
EDERIR S A
— Path Immigration Consultant Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong and Mr. Cheng Kam Por 73 =
— HEBRBEBARAA R ST R EB SRR e
Data research fee paid to a related company
EN—RAEQRANBBEAESE
— ChinaDataBank Limited Mr. Ip Kwok Leung (note) - 720
BEERE4E (ME)
Subcontracting charges and commission paid to
related parties
ENEERSBERANRAS
— Mr. Leung Siu Hong Mr. Leung Siu Hong
(included in directors’” emoluments) 1 -
— RREEE (EFFAEZHM) RIKERSTHE
- KP Cheng & Co., Certified Public Mr. Cheng Kam Por
Accountants - 102
— BERR &t RD =P B8R e A
— Mr. Cheng Kam Por Mr. Cheng Kam Por 26 13
— EPERRSE A B 57 0% ST A
— Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong
(included in directors’” emoluments) 213 193

- REDLAA (B AESEHM)

EEXELE
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Notes:

Mr. Ip Kwok Leung is a brother of the Controlling Shareholder, Mr. Ip Kwok
Kwong.

Included in trade payables as at 31 March 2011 are commission of
approximately HK$87,000 (2010: HK$150,000) payable to a director,
Mr. Ip Kwok Kwong, and commission of approximately HK$5,400
(2010: HK$Nil) payable to a non-controlling shareholder, Mr. Cheng

Kam Por.

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables are rental
deposits and prepayments of approximately HK$358,000 paid to a
related company, Mega Treasure (HK) Limited, as at 31 March 2010. A
non-controlling shareholder, Mr. Cheng Kam Por, has beneficial interest

in Mega Treasure (HK) Limited.

Included in accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2011 are
rental and renovation deposits and rental income received in advance
of approximately HK$363,000 and HK$105,000 respectively from a
related company, Prosperity Management Services Limited. The holding
company of Prosperity Management Services Limited, Prosperity

Investment Holdings Limited, has significant influence in the Group.

Included in accruals and other payables as at 31 March 2011 are rental
deposits and rental income received in advance of approximately
HK$317,000 and HK$100,000 from another related company,
KP Cheng & Co., Certified Public Accountants. A non-controlling
shareholder, Mr. Cheng Kam Por, has beneficial interest in K P Cheng &

Co., Certified Public Accountants.

The key management personnel compensation paid by the Group is

disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

The joint personal guarantee provided by a director and a non-
controlling shareholder is disclosed in note 25 to the financial

statements.
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(a)

(b)

(@}

(d)

Subsequent to 31 March 2011, in preparation for the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange, the Group underwent a Group Reorganisation,
details of which are set out in the paragraphs headed " Corporate

reorganisation” in Appendix VI of the Prospectus.

On 9 May 2011, a special dividend of HK$8.125 per ordinary
share of Greater China Appraisal Limited and HK8,500,000
per ordinary share of Asset-Plus Global Limited, totaling
approximately HK$13,000,000 and HK$17,000,000 respectively,
were approved by their boards of directors and distributed to
their then immediate holding company, GCA Professional Services
Group Limited for the year ending 31 March 2012. After setting
off with the amounts due from and due to GCA Professional
Services Group Limited, a net amount of approximately HK$6.8

million was paid to it on 19 May 2011.

On 18 May 2011, resolutions of all shareholders of the Company
were passed to approve the matters set out in paragraph headed
“Written resolutions of the sole Shareholder” in Appendix VI to

the Prospectus.

On 31 May 2011, the Company completed its initial public
offering by Placing of 125,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each
and listing its shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The gross
proceeds from the Placing amounted to approximately HK$90

million.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 24 June 2011.

M201MF3A31B 2% REHEAR
AR PR R AT Bl SR B Th » A E
EITEESMA  HFBEHNBRER
gk N [RARIEM] S -

MR2011E5H98 EEFEER A
TG mARS. 12578 7T K Asset-Plus
Global Limited & % & 3 % 8,500,000
EILHEE20129F3A31H EFEH
MREEESE=SgHERS KR TH
EREEERATZEZERLE S
EERAFR " &&5 51413,000,000
77T 17,000,000 T, » 4% £ fig U 12
FEZEZZERBKEB AR A A
FRIE K $H 1% - )% %8 496,800,000/% 7T
B 201158198 MERfT

R2011F5818H A AR 2B
BIBRFER DL ERRERWEEN
(ME— R EERZER ] —ERATH

=He

M2011F5A318 AR AIEBEE
= 718 1%125,000,000% & B2 @ (B A
0.0178 70 2 IR 15 K i B AR 17 BBt 2
Frel MR Eiz AR TEREE R
FEE - B EFEH FISRIERTES
$£4990,000,000/% 7T °

N

7N
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ISR RER2011F6 A24HEEE 2t
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last three financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements and the prospectus dated 25 May 2011 is set out below.

Year ended 31 March

BEIANALEE
2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201145 20104 20094F
F#T FiET FiET
RESULTS E )
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AND VININEIETF DN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF FE(EFE =
THE COMPANY 25,427 26,727 2,799
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March
A3A31H
2011 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20115 20104 20094F
F#T FiET FiET
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 52,899 43,165 14,482
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (16,558) (17,866) (5,542)
36,341 25,299 8,940

Note: The financial information for the two years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007

were not disclosed as consolidated financial statements for the Group have
not been prepared for those years.

The summary of the combined results of the Group for each of the two
years ended 31 March 2009 and 2010 and of the assets and liabilities as
of 31 March 2009 and 2010 have been extracted from the Company’s
listing prospectus dated 25 May 2011. Such summary was prepared as
if the current structure of the Group had been in existence throughout
these financial years and is presented on the basis as set out in note 2
to the audited consolidated financial statements. The audited results of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the audited assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2011 are those set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

IR 1% 75 B 22008%F K 20074F3 431 H 1F
A EFZ BRI FEEF - A7 5E [0 A 5L
BETR R A TEIRE
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GreaterChina Professional Services Limited
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Room 2703, 27" Floor, Shui On Centre
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